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Z000 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

rnmeren Consolidated Year Ended December 31, 2000 Current Year Change

Earnings per Common Share 

Net Income 

Book Value per Common Share 

Property and Plant (net) 

Total Operating Revenues 

Native Kilowatthour Sales 

Total Kilowatthour Sales 

Dividends Paid per Common Share

$3.33 

$457,094,000 

$23.30 

$7,705,672,000 

$3,855,849,000 

48,778,000,000 

72,385,000,000 

$2.5L4
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OUR STRATEGY IS TO CAPITALIZE ON THE FLEXIBILITY WE GAIN FROM 

RELIANCE ON OUR HIGHLY RELIABLE, LOW-COST GENERATING PLANTS, 

WHILE EXPANDING OUR PEAKING CAPACITY.  

VV r ARE CAIPfTALEZi[Th ý Z G H U 
T RAv HE An HID MARKETH i 5T T[REN i T H 
OUR MORE THAN 30 INTERCONNECTIONS WITH POWER SUPPLIERS, 

THE CENTRAL LOCATION OF OUR POWER PLANTS, PLUS A 5,200-MILE 

TRANSMISSION SYSTEM GIVE AMEREN A STRATEGIC POSITION OFFERING 

UNPARALLELED ACCESS TO MARKETS.  

WEBEA FOCUSMG OH COST CUFATROLT 
INCREASED PRODUCTIVITY AND CONTINUED COST CONTROL COMBINE TO KEEP 

OUR ENERGY PRODUCTS HIGHLY COMPETITIVE AND OUR RATES LOW-

Charles LLI. Mueller 

Chairman, President and 

Chief Executive Officer

/

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE



TO OUR OWNERS, 
Rmeren ended the year 2000 with its best annual earnings performance ever. In short, We We delivered a strong 

delivered on our promises to our owners and customers. Last year, we pledged to pursue these 9 percent increase 

key strategies to return value to our shareholders: in earnings per share 

in 2866 over 1999, 

/ To expand our generation business - a core company strength, exceeding our annual 

/ To expand our customer base - primarily through continued growth earnings per share 

in trading and marketing. groLuth target.  

To focus on controlling costs and effectively managing our 

regulatory affairs.  

Rs the rest of my letter to you will indicate, and as our earnings results for 2000 clearly show, 

we are delivering on these promises.  

ELLGIEV<-I[]G V,•,LUE TOO: A' 

In 2000, our company recorded record earnings of $L457 million, or $3.33 per share, compared 

to $385 million, or $2.81 per share, in 1999. In 2000, we reported a pretax nonrecurring charge 

of $25 million, or 11 cents per share, related to our withdrawal from the Midwest Independent 

System Operator. In 1999, we reported a pretax nonrecurring charge of $52 million, or 23 cents 

per share, related to terminating high cost coal contracts - which resulted in future benefits.  

Excluding the impact of weather and the nonrecurring charges, we delivered a strong 9 percent 

increase in earnings per share in 2000 over 1999, exceeding our annual earnings per share 

growth target. In the years ahead, we will continue to target annual earnings per share growth of 

at least 5 percent.  

The year also marked the transfer of five former RmerenClPS power plants, representing 2,900 

megawatts of generation, to a newly created nonregulated company, RmerenEnergy Generating 

Company. In the summer of 2000, we also added approximately 590 megawatts of new 

generation with the start-up of combustion turbine units. This additional capacity contributed to 

our ability to supply power to our new and existing customers, allowing us to cover our peak 

demand of approximately 11,6140 megawatts - a record set in Rugust 2000. We are planning 

to expand our nonregulated generation by adding more than 2,300 megawatts of generating 

capacity by 2005. Nearly 850 megawatts of this total is expected to be installed for the 2001 

summer season.
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TO OUR OWNERS, 
Rmeren ended the year 2000 with its best annual earnings performance ever. In short, we 

delivered on our promises to our owners and customers. Last year, we pledged to pursue these 

key strategies to return value to our shareholders: 

/ To expand our generation business - a core company strength.  

V To expand our customer base - primarily through continued growth 
in trading and marketing.  

V To focus on controlling costs and effectively managing our 
regulatory affairs.  

Rs the rest of my letter to you will indicate, and as our earnings results for 2000 clearly show, 

we are delivering on these promises.  

GENERATING VALUE TODAY 

Z000 Financial Performance 

In 2000, our company recorded record earnings of $L157 million, or $3.33 per share, compared 

to $385 million, or $2.81 per share, in 1999. In 2000, we reported a pretax nonrecurring charge 

of $25 million, or 11 cents per share, related to our withdrawal from the Midwest Independent 

System Operator. In 1999, we reported a pretax nonrecurring charge of $52 million, or 23 cents 

per share, related to terminating high cost coal contracts - which resulted in future benefits.  

Excluding the impact of weather and the nonrecurring charges, we delivered a strong 9 percent 

increase in earnings per share in 2000 over 1999, exceeding our annual earnings per share 

growth target. In the years ahead, we will continue to target annual earnings per share growth of 

at least 5 percent.  

Expanding Our Generation Business and Growing Our Customer Base 

The year also marked the transfer of five former RmerenCIPS power plants, representing 2,900 

megawatts of generation, to a newly created nonregulated company, RmerenEnergy Generating 

Company. In the summer of 2000, we also added approximately 690 megawatts of new 

generation with the start-up of combustion turbine units. This additional capacity contributed to 

our ability to supply power to our new and existing customers, allowing us to cover our peak 

demand of approximately 11,640 megawatts - a record set in Rugust 2000. We are planning 

to expand our nonregulated generation by adding more than 2,300 megawatts of generating 

capacity by 2005. Nearly 850 megawatts of this total is expected to be installed for the 2001 

summer season.

We delivered a strong 

9 percent Increase 

In earnings per share 

in 2000 over 1999, 

exceeding our annual 

earnings per share 

growth target.
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Rmeren 's Senior 

Management Team: 

(from left, seated) 

Gary L. Rainwater 

RmerenCIPS President 

and Chief Executive 

Officer and President 

of RmerenEnergy 

Resources Company; 

Thomas R. Voss and 

Donald E. Brandt, 

Senior Vice Presidents; 

(from left, standing) 

Paul R. Rgathen, 

Daniel F Cole and 

Garry L. Randolph, 

Senior Vice Presidents.

The year was also outstanding for our energy trading and marketing operations, which, in 

comparison with 1999 results, recorded increases in interchange and wholesale sales of 35% 

and L41%, respectively. In 2000, AmerenEnergy contributed an estimated 26 cents per share to 

our bottom line, double the per share contribution in 1999. We continued to grow our customer 

base in 2000 as we began supplying more than 375 megawatts of power to Soyland Power 

Cooperative through a multi-year contract in January. In August 2000, Archer Daniels Midland 

Illinois' largest single electricity user - became a 300-megawatt customer through a multi-year 

contract. Finally, in the fall, we contracted with, and began supplying power to, Illinois Energy 

Consortium. This contract covers 500 school buildings and 120 school districts in Illinois.  

Controlling Costs 

In 2000, we realized an estimated savings of $27 million, resulting from the 1999 termination 

of certain high cost coal contracts. We also successfully secured labor contracts that offer 

greater flexibility in our ability to tap the expertise and experience of a highly skilled workforce, 

thereby creating labor efficiencies. Ameren also became a founding member of Enporion, Inc., 

an Internet-based, global procurement exchange for the energy industry. This exchange promis

es to streamline the procurement process and reduce future purchasing costs, cycle times 

and inventories.  

Effectively Managing Regulatory Affairs 

We continue to operate in a dynamic regulatory environment. Recently, we have been addressing 

the issues associated with the June 30, 2001, completion of our experimental alternative regulation 

plan in Missouri. On Feb. 1, 2001, we, along with other parties, submitted filings to the Missouri 

Public Service Commission on the merits of the current plan. We support an extension of this plan,

ik
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RECORD 
EARNINGS 
with certain modifications, including retail electric rate reductions and additional customer credits. Other parties cited 

concerns with the current plan. We believe that the structure of the plan provides incentives for the company to 

improve its financial performance and equitably share those improvements with our shareholders and customers. In the 

months ahead, we will make every effort to work with the appropriate parties to reach a satisfactory resolution of this 

matter. We also recently announced our intention to withdraw from the Midwest Independent System Operator and to 

become a member of the Rlliance Regional Transmission Organization - a move that helps us ensure the continued 

reliable, efficient and profitable operation of our transmission system. This action is still subject to regulatory approvals.  

We continue to explore alternatives for offering provider choice and to capitalize on competitive opportunities in 

newly opened markets, like Illinois, where a choice of providers is available now to all non-residential customers.  

We believe that it is prudent for Missouri to continue to explore the issues surrounding provider choice. We remain 

active in building a coalition to support legislation that would open the state to choice for the very largest retail 

electric customers. We remain committed to ensuring that any legislation passed in Missouri is fair and equitable 

to our shareholders and that it ensures reliable service to our customers.  

GENERATING VALUE TOMORROW 

For Rmeren, 2000 was a year of action - a year when we positioned the company to be successful in the rapidly 

changing energy industry. We have assembled the resources, people, product and service strengths to capture 

solid returns and enhance shareholder value.  

For 2001 and beyond, we are moving forward with a focused strategy. The basics of that strategy are straightforward: 

1) We will continue to capitalize on our low-cost generation and expand nonregulated generation in targeted locations 

across our region. 2) We will continue to capitalize on our unparalleled access to markets and our highly effective 

energy trading and marketing organizations. We are actively pursuing customers outside our traditional service area in 

Illinois and in other states where competition is a reality. 3) We will continue to manage our costs and improve our 

efficiency and productivity through Intemet-based e-commerce solutions and through the more conventional tactics of 

reducing power plant production costs and by pursuing an energy delivery strategy that focuses on increased service 

effectiveness and efficiency. In summary, we remain focused on returning value to our shareholders.  

Finally, the year was also marked by the death of Charles J. Dougherty, retired chairman of Union Electric 

Company, now AmerenUE. He was 81 and an employee of Union Electric Company for more than L4 years when 

he retired as chairman of the board in 1985. Charlie Dougherty was a tremendous leader - a man of exceptional 

character and integrity. He will be sorely missed by everyone who knew him.  

Thank you for being our shareholders.  

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer,

February 9, 2001
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Strategically located in the heart of the U.S. power 

grid, Rmeren's 5,200-mile transmission system and 

its more than 30 interconnections make our company 

the second most connected company in the nation.  

This reach and our generating strength allow Rmeren 

to capitalize on a growing market for energy as 

demand for power outpaces the nation's supply.  
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GENERATING VALUE - TODAY AND TOMORROW I
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EXPANDING OUR 

GENERATION 
BUSINESS

COMPETITION CREATES NEW OPPORTUNITIES FOR GROWTH 

In 2000, we added 590 megawatts of new generation with the start-up of 12 

combustion turbine units. Ameren now ranks Number One in Illinois in generation 

development. The year also marked the transfer of 2,900 megawatts of capacity 

all AmerenCIPS power plants - to a nonregulated generating company. The trans

ferred and new generation, plus planned capacity additions, will total nearly 

6,000 megawatts of nonregulated generation by 2005. However, new generation 

hasn't been our only focus. Ameren's existing baseload generating plants set 

availability and total generation records by reducing outage times and employing 

state-of-the-art technologies to increase efficiency and reduce emissions.

(center page 8) Meredosia Plant 
replaces boiler tubes to significant

ly increase plant availability. Sioux 
Plant Unit Operating Engineer Edgar 

Howard (above, far right) operates 

new digital control system tech

nology for increased unit reliability.  

(above, left) Rt the Klnmundy 

project, crews Install one of two 

turbines, adding 23LI megawatts 

to generation capacity; and (belowj 

Consulting Project Engineers 

Tom Callahan (left) and Bryan 

LihImanslek review combustion 

turbine generator designs.
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UNPARALLELED 

TO MARKETS
(belowi RmerenEnergy"s Rmar 
Erewal checks prices at our trading 

company, which reported record 
sales for 2000. (above, far lefti Rt 
Eisenhower High School Decatur, 

/li, students work with computers.  
powered by Rmeren through a new 

energy contract with the Illinois 
Energy Consortium. (above, right] 

Meramec Plant's new barge loading 

facility Is expected to reduce 

fuel transport costs. The graphic 

(center page i01 depicts our more 
than 30 Interconnections with 

other suppliers.

THE MARKETPLACE IS THE DRIVING FORCE FOR EVERYTHING WE DO 

Integrating robust generation and transmission with a highly profitable trading 

group and a newly formed marketing operation are the cornerstones of Rmeren's 

strategy for generating value in competitive markets. We benefit from an impres

sive portfolio of long-term power contracts, coupled with an exceptional ability 
to identify, anticipate and respond to changes in the energy marketplace - a case 

in point: our interchange sales rose 35% in 2000 over then-record 1999 sales.  
Our strategic location and more than 30 interconnections allow us to buy and sell 

energy across more than half the United States. In addition, we are capitalizing 

on our breadth and depth of experience and expertise in fuel sourcing and trans

portation. In 2000, we established a nonregulated subsidiary to provide approxi

mately $1 billion in fuel procurement and natural gas supply services for Rmeren's 

affiliated companies and other customers- further adding to Rmeren's competitive 

position in Midwest energy markets.
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MANAGING FOR 

EFFICIEN4CIES 
BEHIND OUR LOW COSTS IS A HISTORY OF PRODUCTIVITY 

Productivity continues to climb at Ameren. Focused on cementing our 

position as a leader in delivering energy, we are capitalizing on one of the 

nation's most technologically integrated distribution systems to track usage 

patterns and to anticipate and correct problems before expensive repairs are 

required. We have reduced fuel costs, realizing year 2000 estimated savings 

of $27 million from the 1999 termination of long-term coal contracts. We 

worked aggressively to reduce future fuel transportation costs by developing 

competition through a multi-year strategy, including the construction of new 

coal-transfer facilities. We pared power plant outage times and streamlined 

maintenance costs, using technology to perform preventative maintenance.  

We established an alliance with other nuclear plants to reduce training, 

procurement and refueling costs. And we are harnessing the power of the 

Internet, using electronic commerce to serve customers more efficiently 

and to streamline the purchase of goods and services.  

(at left, above) Customers save 
money and time paying bills through 
our web site - uJww.ameren.com 
a focus for new electronic business 
initiatives. (above, rightJ Crews 
replace fuel assemblies during a 
Callaway Nuclear Plant refueling 
these outages should become even 
more efficient through sharing 
resources and expertise with four 
other nuclear sites. (below) Sioux 
Plant recorded its highest monthly 
generation aver in Rugust - a time 
when energy is needed most
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The management of Ameren Corporation is responsible for the information and representations contained In the 

consolidated financial statements and in other sections of this Rnnual Report. The consolidated financial statements 

have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Other information included in this 
report is consistent, where applicable, with the consolidated financial statements.  

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable assurance as to 
the integrity of the financial records and the protection of assets. Qualified personnel are selected and an organization 
structure is maintained that provides for appropriate functional responsibility.  

Written policies and procedures have been developed and are revised as necessary. The Company maintains and 
supports an extensive program of internal audits with appropriate management follow up.  

The Board of Directors, through its Ruditing Committee comprised of outside directors, is responsible for ensuring 
that both management and the independent accountants fulfill their respective responsibilities relative to the financial 
statements. Moreover, the independent accountants have full and free access to meet with the Ruditing Committee, 

with or without management present, to discuss auditing or financial reporting matters.  

Charles UJ. Mueller Donald E. Brandt 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President, Finance 

February 5, 2001 February 5, 2001 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF AMEREN CORPORATION: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income 
and retained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Rmeren 

Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2000, and 1999, and the results of their operations and their cash 

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Rn audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP 

February 5, 2001
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW 

Ameren Corporation IAmeren or the Companyl is a holding 

company registered under the Public Utility Holding Company Act 

of 1935 (PUHCR). In December 1997, Union Electric Company 

IRmerenUE) and CIPSCO Incorporated (CIPSCOI combined to form 

Ameren, with AmerenUE and CIPSCO's subsidiaries, Central 

Illinois Public Service Company (RmerenCIPS) and CIPSCO 

Investment Company (CICI, becoming subsidiaries of Ameren 

(the Merger). Rs a result of the Merger, Ameren has a 50% 
ownership interest In Electric Energy, Inc. (EEl). That interest is 

consolidated for financial reporting purposes. Since the Merger, 

Ameren has formed several new subsidiaries, Including 

AmerenEnergy, Inc. (RmerenEnergy), Ameren Development 

Company, RmerenEnergy Resources Company (formerly known 

as Ameren Intermediate Holding Company, Inc.), and Ameren 

Services Company. AmerenEnergy, an energy trading and mar

keting subsidiary, primarily serves as a power marketing agent 

for AmerenUE and AmerenEnergy Generating Company, the non

regulated electric generating subsidiary of AmerenEnergy 

Resources Company, and provides a range of energy and risk 

management services to targeted customers. Rmeren 

Development Company is a nonregulated subsidiary encompass

ing various nonregulated products and services. AmerenEnergy 

Resources Company holds Ameren's nonregulated generating 

operations (see discussion below under "Electric Industry 

Restructuring - Illinois" and Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further Informa

tion). Ameren Services Company provides shared support serv

ices to Ameren and all of its subsidiaries.  

References to the Company are to Ameren on a consolidated 

basis; however, in certain circumstances, the subsidiaries are 

separately referred to In order to distinguish among their differ

ent business activities.  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Earnings 

Earnings for 2000, 1999 and 1998, were $457 million 

($3.33 per share), $385 million ($2.81 per share) and $386 

million ($2.82 per share), respectively. Earnings and earnings 

per share fluctuated due to many conditions, primarily: sales 

growth, weather variations, credits to electric customers, elec

tric rate reductions, gas rate increases, competitive market 

forces, fluctuating operating costs (including Callaway Nuclear 

Plant refueling outages), expenses relating to the withdrawal 

from the electric transmission related Midwest Independent 

System Operator (Midwest (50), charges for coal contract 

terminations and a targeted separation plan (TSP), changes in 

interest expense, and changes in income and property taxes.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a $25 mil

lion nonrecurring charge to earnings in connection with its with

drawal from the Midwest ISO. The charge reduced earnings $15 

million, net of income taxes, or I] cents per share (see discus

sion below under "Electric Industry Restructuring" and Note 2 

Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information). In the fourth quarter of 1999, 

the Company recorded a $52 million nonrecurring charge to 

earnings in connection with coal contract terminations with two 

coal suppliers. The charge reduced earnings $31 million, net of 

income taxes, or 23 cents per share (see discussion below 

under "Electric Operations" and Note 12 - Commitments and 

Contingencies under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information). In 1998, the Company 

recorded a nonrecurring charge to earnings in connection with 

a targeted separation plan it offered to employees in July 1998.  

That charge reduced earnings $15 million, net of income taxes, 

or 11 cents per share (see Note 3 - Targeted Separation Plan 

under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further 

information).  

The Company estimates that ongoing earnings per share for 

the year ending December 31, 2001, will range between $3.30 

and $3.115 per share. This estimate is subject to, among other 

things, the resolution of issues associated with the experimental 

alternative regulation plan in Missouri; however, It does incorpo

rate an extension of the current plan with certain modifications, 

Including retail electric rate reductions and additional 

customer credits (see discussion below under "Rate Matters" 

and Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for further Information).  

The significant Items affecting revenues, expenses and earn

ings for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 are 

detailed in the following pages.

Electric Operations 
Electric Revenues

In Millions

Rate variations 
Credit to customers 

Effect of abnormal weather 

Growth and other 

Interchange sales 

EEl sales

Variations from Prior Year 

2000 1999 1998

$ - $ (171 $113) 
(27) 5 (211) 

N4) (531 61 
1117 75 LI5 

135 159 16 

(13) 211 155) 
$238 $193 $30
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Electric revenues for 2000 increased $238 million, com

pared to the prior year period, primarily due to an 8% increase in 

total kilowatthour sales. This increase was primarily driven by 
a 35% increase in interchange sales, reflecting the marketing 

efforts of RmerenEnergy. In addition, residential and commer

cial sales rose 6% and 8%, respectively, while industrial and 

wholesale sales rose 3% and L11%, respectively. These increases 
were offset in part by an increase in the estimated credits 

to Missouri electric customers [see Note 2 - Regulatory Matters 

under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further 

information).  

Electric revenues for 1999 increased $193 million, com
pared to 1998, primarily due to a 9% increase in total kilo

watthour sales. This increase was primarily driven by a 

53% increase in interchange sales, due to strong marketing 

efforts at RmerenEnergy and a 12% increase in EEl sales.  

Rlso contributing to the revenue increase was a decrease in 

the credit to Missouri electric customers, partially offset by 
the credit to Illinois electric customers (see Note 2 

Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information). Partially offsetting these 
increases, weather-sensitive residential and commercial 

sales decreased 2% and 1%, respectively, while industrial 

sales remained flat. In addition, revenues were lower due 

to rate decreases in both Missouri and Illinois (see Note 2 

Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information).  

Electric revenues for 1998 increased $30 million, compared 

to 1997. Revenues increased primarily due to higher sales to 

retail customers within the Company's service territory, as a 
result of warm summer weather and economic growth in the 

service area. Weather-sensitive residential and commercial 

sales increased 6% and 14%, respectively, while industrial sales 
grew 2%. Rdditionally, interchange revenues increased 7%, 

despite a 114% decline in interchange sales, due to market condi

tions. These increases were partially offset by an increase in 
credits to Missouri electric customers (Iee Note 2 - Regulatory 

Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for 
further information) and lower sales by EEl.  

Fuel and Purchased Power 
Variations from Prior Year 

In Millions 2000 1999 1998 

Fuel: 
Generation $49 $ 10 $ 9 
Price (33) 1151 (231 
Generation efficiencies and other (13) (8) 

Coal contract termination payments (52) 52 

Purchased power 92 117 (3) 
EEl 9 37 139) 

$52 $193 $156)

The $52 million increase in fuel and purchased power costs 

for 2000, compared to 1999, was primarily due to increased 

generation and purchased power, resulting from higher sales 

volume, partially offset by lower fuel costs, due to the termina

tion of certain coal contracts in the fourth quarter of 1999.  

The $193 million increase in fuel and purchased power costs 

for 1999, compared to 1998, was primarily due to increased gen

eration and purchased power, resulting from higher sales vol

ume, increased fuel and purchased power costs at EEl and coal 

contract termination payments discussed below, partially offset 

by lower fuel costs.  

In the fourth quarter of 1999, RmerenCIPS and two of its coal 

suppliers executed agreements to terminate their existing coal 

supply contracts effective December 31, 1999. Under these 

agreements, RmerenCIPS made termination payments to the 

suppliers totaling approximately $52 million. These termination 

payments were recorded as a nonrecurring charge in the fourth 

quarter of 1999. Total pretax fuel cost savings from these termi

nation agreements are estimated to be $183 million (or $131 mil

lion net of the termination payments) through 2010, which is the 

maximum period that would have remained on any of the termi
nated coal supply contracts. Total estimated pretax fuel cost 

savings of $27 million were realized in 2000. See Note 12 

Commitments and Contingencies under Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for further information.  

The $55 million decrease in fuel and purchased power 
costs for 1998, compared to 1997, was primarily driven by lower 
fuel and purchased power costs at EEl as a result of fewer 

sales. In addition, fuel cost reductions were realized, due to 
lower fuel prices, as well as through the joint dispatch of gener

ation. Upon consummation of the Merger, RmerenUE and 

RmerenCIPS began jointly dispatching generation, therefore 

allowing the Company to utilize the most cost efficient plants of 

both operating companies to serve customers in either service 

territory. These decreases were partially offset by increased 

generation to serve native load demand.  

Ga Op e rati on s 

Gas revenues in 2000 and 1999 increased $95 million 

and $12 million, respectively, primarily due to increases in retail 

sales, due to unusually cold weather, an annualized $L4 million 

Missouri gas rate increase, which became effective in 

November 2000, an annualized $9 million Illinois gas rate 

increase, which became effective in February 1999 (see Note 2 

- Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information) and higher gas costs recov

ered through the Company's purchased gas adjustment clauses.  

Gas revenues in 1998 decreased $33 million, compared to 1997, 

primarily due to an 8% decline in retail sales, resulting from 

milder winter weather and lower gas costs reflected in the 

Company's purchased gas adjustment clauses. These decreases
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were partially offset by benefits realized from a Missouri gas 

rate increase, effective February 1998 (see Note 2 - Regulatory 

Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for 

further information).  

Gas costs in 2000 increased $78 million, compared to 1999, 

primarily due to higher sales and gas prices. Gas costs in 1999 

increased $13 million, compared to 1998. This increase in gas 

costs was primarily due to higher gas prices, partially offset by 
lower total sales. Gas costs in 1998 declined $412 million, com

pared to 1997, due to lower sales and lower gas prices.  

Other OpeTating Expenses 

Other operating expense variations in 1998 through 2000 
reflected recurring factors, such as growth, inflation, labor and 

benefit variations, the capitalization of certain costs as a result 

of a Missouri Public Service Commission (MoPSCI Order and 

charges for estimated costs relating to withdrawal from the 

Midwest ISO and the TSP, as discussed below.  

In November 2000, the Company announced that it is with

drawing from the Midwest ISO to become a member of the 
Alliance Regional Transmission Organization [Alliance RTO).  

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a pretax 

nonrecurring charge to earnings of $25 million ($15 million after 
income taxes, or 11 cents per share) as a result of the 

Company's decision to withdraw from the Midwest ISO. This 

charge relates to Ameren's estimated obligation under the 
Midwest ISO agreement for costs incurred by the Midwest ISO, 

plus estimated exit costs. See discussions below under 

"Electric Industry Restructuring" and Note 2 - Regulatory Matters 

under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further 

information.  

In 1998, the Company announced plans to reduce its other 
operating expenses, Including plans to eliminate approximately 

'100 employee positions by mid-1999 through a hiring freeze and 
the TSP. During the third quarter of 1998, a nonrecurring, pretax 

charge of $25 million was recorded, representing costs incurred 
to implement the TSP. The elimination of these positions, exclu

sive of the nonrecurring charge, reduced the Company's operat

ing expenses approximately $15 million in 1998, and approxi
mately $22 million in 1999, and is expected to reduce the 

Company's operating expenses by approximately $20 million 

to $25 million each year thereafter. See Note 3 - Targeted 

Separation Plan under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information.  

Other operating expenses, excluding the Midwest ISO-related 

nonrecurring charge discussed above, increased $10 million in 
2000, compared to 1999. This increase was primarily due to 

increases in injuries and damages expense, and higher labor 

expenses, offset in part by lower employee benefits in 2000, 

resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions. Other operat

ing expenses decreased $18 million in 1999, compared to 1998.

This decrease was primarily due to the 1998 charge for the TSP 

and related reduced workforce and the capitalization of certain 

costs (including computer software costs) that had previously 

been expensed for the Company's Missouri electric operations.  

The capitalization was a result of the MoPSC Order received in 

December 1999 (see Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements for further information).  

These decreases were partially offset by 1999 expenses associ

ated with electric industry deregulation in Illinois. The $52 mil

lion Increase in other operations expense in 1998, compared to 

1997, was primarily due to the charge for the TSP and increases 

in injuries and damages expense and information system

related costs.  

Maintenance expenses decreased $3 million in 2000, com

pared to 1999. This decrease was primarily the result of no 

Callaway Nuclear Plant outage in 2000, partially offset by 

increased scheduled fossil power plant maintenance and tree

trimming activity. Maintenance expenses increased $59 million 

in 1999, compared to 1998. This Increase was primarily due to 

Increased fossil power plant maintenance and tree-trimming 

activity. The expenses incurred for the 35-day refueling outage 

in the fall of 1999 at the Callaway Nuclear Plant were compara

ble to those for the 31-day spring 1998 refueling outage.  

Maintenance expenses increased $2 million in 1998, compared 

to 1997, due to the refueling outage at the Callaway Nuclear 

Plant, partially offset by less scheduled fossil power plant 

maintenance.  

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $32 million 

in 2000, compared to 1999, due to increased depreciable prop

erty, primarily resulting from the addition of combustion turbine 

generating facilities (see discussions below under "Liquidity and 

Capital Resources" and "Electric Industry Restructuring" for further 

information). Depreciation and amortization expense was rela

tively flat in 1999 and 1998, compared to the prior year periods.  

Taxes 

Income tax expense increased $L42 million in 2000, com

pared to 1999, due to higher pretax income. Income tax expense 

from operations decreased $9 million in 1999, compared to 1998, 

due to lower pretax income. Income tax expense from operations 

increased $33 million in 1998. compared to 1997, due to higher 

pretax income and a higher effective tax rate.  

Other tax expense increased $18 million in 2000, compared 
to 1999, primarily due to a change in the property tax assess

ment in the state of Illinois in June 2000. Other tax expense 

decreased $26 million in 1999, compared to 1998, primarily due 

to a decrease in gross receipts taxes related to the Company's 

Illinois iurisdiction. This decrease is the result of the restructur

ing of the Illinois public utility tax whereby gross receipts taxes 
are no longer recorded as electric revenues and gross receipts 

tax expense.
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Other Income and Deductions 
Miscellaneous, net decreased $5 million in 2000, compared 

to 1999, due to the prior period write-off of certain nonregulated 

investments, partially offset by increased charitable contributions 

in 2000. Miscellaneous, net increased $8 million in 1999, com

pared to 1998, due to the write-off of certain nonregulated invest

ments in 1999 and gains on the sale of property realized in 1998 

but not in 1999. Miscellaneous, net decreased $8 million for 

1998, compared to 1997, due to increased interest income and 

gains on the sale of property.  

Interest 
Interest expense increased $10 million in 2000, compared to 

1999, primarily due to increased debt levels related to the con

struction and purchase of combustion turbine generating facilities 

(see discussion below under "Liquidity and Capital Resources").  

Interest expense decreased $13 million in 1999, primarily due to 

a lower amount of debt outstanding throughout the year. Interest 

expense decreased $LA million in 1998, compared to 1997, due to 

lower interest rates and a decrease in other interest expense, 

partially offset by an increase in interest on a higher amount of 

debt outstanding.  

Balance Sheet 
The $1D4 million increase in trade accounts receivable was 

due primarily to higher sales and revenues in November and 

December 2000, compared to the same 1999 period.  

The $122 million increase in accounts and wages payable, at 

December 31, 2000, was primarily due to an increase in deferred 

compensation, in addition to the timing of various payments to 

suppliers, including the accrual for the nonrecurring charge in con

nection with the Company's withdrawal from the Midwest ISO.  

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Cash provided by operating activities totaled $856 million 

for 2000, compared to $918 million for 1999, and $803 million 

for 1998.  

Cash flows used in investing activities totaled $910 million, 

$558 million and $323 million, for the years ended December 

31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Expenditures in 2000 for 

constructing new or improving existing facilities and purchasing 

rail cars were $929 million, including approximately $350 

million for the purchase of new combustion turbine generating 

facilities. In addition, the Company spent $22 million to acquire 

nuclear fuel.  

Capital expenditures are expected to approximate $886 mil

lion in 2001. For the five-year period 2001 through 2005, con

struction expenditures are estimated at approximately $3 billion.  

This estimate includes capital expenditures that will be incurred 

by the Company for the purchase of new combustion turbine 

generating facilities (see Note 12 - Commitments and 

Contingencies under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for further information), and for the replacement of four steam 

generators at its Callaway Nuclear Plant, as well as expenditures 

to meet new air quality standards for ozone and particulate 

matter, as discussed below.  

Title IV of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 required the 

Company to significantly reduce total annual sulfur dioxide 1S02) 

and nitrogen oxide (NOxI emissions by the year 2000. By 

switching to low-sulfur coal, early banking of emission credits 

and installing advanced NOx reduction combustion technology, 

the Company is meeting these requirements.  

In July 1997, the United States Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA) issued regulations revising the National Ambient 

Air Quality Standards for ozone and particulate matter. In May 

1999, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia 

remanded the regulations back to the EPA for review. The EPA 

appealed the decision to the U.S. Supreme Court, and all argu

ments and briefs have been filed. R decision is expected in mid

2001. New ambient standards may require significant additional 

reductions in S02 and NOx emissions from the Company's power 

plants by 2007. Rt this time, the Company is unable to predict 

the ultimate impact of these revised air quality standards on its 

future financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.  

In an attempt to lower ozone levels across the eastern United 

States, the EPA issued regulations in September 1998, to reduce 

NOx emissions from coal-fired boilers and other sources in 

22 states, including Missouri and Illinois Iwhere all of the 

Company's coal-fired power plant boilers are located). The regu

lations were challenged in a U.S. District Court. In March 2000, 

the Court upheld most of the regulations. However, the Court 

remanded the state of Missouri's regulations back to the EPR for 

revision. The Court further delayed the compliance date of the 

regulations until 200q. The regulations mandate a 75% reduction 

in NOx emissions from power plant boilers in Illinois by the year 

200Y. The final applicability of the regulations as they might 

apply to utility boilers in Missouri is still uncertain. The NOx 

emissions reductions already achieved on several of the 

Company's coal-fired power plants will help reduce the costs of 

compliance with these regulations. However, the regulations will 

require the installation of selective catalytic reduction technology 

on some of the Company's units, as well as additional controls.  

Currently, the Company estimates that its additional capital 

expenditures to comply with the final NOx regulations could 

range from $250 million to $300 million over the period from 

2001 to 2005. Associated operations and maintenance expendi

tures could increase $10 million to $15 million annually, beginning 

in 2005. The Company is exploring alternatives to comply with 

these new regulations in order to minimize, to the extent possi

ble, its capital costs and operating expenses. The Company is 

unable to predict the ultimate impact of these standards on its 

future financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. See 

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies under Notes to

I
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Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of 

environmental issues.  

See Note 13 - Callaway Nuclear Plant under Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of Callaway 

Nuclear Plant decommissioning costs.  

Cash flows used in financing activities were $11-1 million for 

2000, compared to $24-11 million for 1999 and $1-146 million for 

1998. The Company's principal financing activities during 2000 

included the issuance of $703 million of long-term debt, the 

redemption of $4121 million of long-term debt and the payment 

of dividends.  

On November 1, 2000, PmerenEnergy Generating Company 

(Generating Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of 

PmerenEnergy Resources Company, issued in a private place

ment Senior Notes, Series P due 2005 (Series P Notes) and 

Senior Notes, Series B due 2010 (Series B Notesl (collectively, 

the Senior Notes). The Series P Notes totaled $225 million.  

Interest will accrue on the Series P Notes at a rate of 7.75% per 

year and will be payable semiannually in arrears on May I and 

November 1 of each year commencing on May 1, 2001. Principal 

of the Series R Notes will be payable on November ], 2005.  

Series B Notes totaled $200 million. Interest will accrue on the 

Series B Notes at a rate of 8.35% per year and will be payable 

semiannually in arrears on May 1 and November I of each year 

commencing on May 1, 2001. Principal of the Series B Notes will 

be payable on November 1, 2010. The proceeds from the Senior 

Notes were $423.6 million, excluding transaction costs. With 

the proceeds of the Senior Notes, Generating Company reduced 

Its short-term borrowings Incurred in connection with the con

struction of completed combustion turbine generating facilities, 

paid for the construction of certain combustion turbine generating 

facilities, and funded working capital and other capital expendi

ture needs. Generating Company Intends to file a registration 

statement In the first quarter of 2001 to register the Senior Notes 

under the Securities Pct of 1933, as amended, to permit an 

exchange offer of the Senior Notes.  

The Company anticipates securing additional permanent 

financing during 2001-2004L to primarily fund capital expenditure 

requirements for combustion turbine generating facilities. Pt this 

time, the Company is unable to determine the amount of the 

additional permanent financing, as well as the additional financ

ing's impact on the Company's financial position, results of 

operations or liquidity.  

The Company plans to continue utilizing short-term debt to 

support normal operations and other temporary requirements.  

The Company and its subsidiaries are authorized by the 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under PUHCP to 

have up to an aggregate $2.8 billion of short-term unsecured 

debt Instruments outstanding at any one time. Short-term bor

rowings consist of commercial paper (maturities generally within 

I to 1_5 days) and bank loans. Pt December 31, 2000, the

Company had committed bank lines of credit aggregating $176 

million, all of which was unused and available at such date, 

which make available interim financing at various rates of interest 

based on LIBOR, the bank certificate of deposit rate or other 

options. The lines of credit are renewable annually at various 

dates throughout the year. The Company has bank credit agree

ments, expiring at various dates between 2001 and 2002, that 

support commercial paper programs totaling $763 million, $1-63 

million of which is available for the Company's own use and for 

the use of Its subsidiaries. The remaining $300 million is avail

able for the use of the Company's regulated subsidiaries. At 

December 31, 2000, $577 million was unused and available. The 

Company had $203 million of short-term borrowings at year end 

(see Note 7 - Short-Term Borrowings under Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for further information).  

RmerenUE also has a lease agreement that provides for the 

financing of nuclear fuel. Pt December 31, 2000, the maximum 

amount that could be financed under the agreement was $120 mil

lion. Cash used in financing for 2000 Included issuances under 

the lease for nuclear fuel of $9 million, offset In part by $11 million of 

redemptions. Pt December 31, 2000, $1114 million was financed 

under the lease. See Note 5 - Nuclear Fuel Lease under Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements for further Information.  

During the course of the Company's resource planning and 

to satisfy regulatory load requirements for 2001 and beyond for 

PmerenUE, PmerenCIPS and AmerenEnergy Resources 

Company, the Company is seeking regulatory approvals to trans

fer PmerenUE's Illinois-based electric and natural gas business

es and its Illinois-based distribution and transmission assets 

and personnel to PmerenCIPS (see Note 2 - Regulatory Matters 

under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further dis

cussion). The distribution and transmission assets and related 

liabilities are proposed to be transferred from PmerenUE to 

PmerenCIPS at historical net book value; therefore, the transfer 

will have no effect on the consolidated balance sheet of Pmeren.  

In addition, the Company is considering proposals for the pur

chase of 4150 megawatts of capacity and energy for the summer 

of 2001, among other things. Pt this time, management is 

unable to predict which course of action it will pursue to satisfy 

these requirements and their ultimate Impact on the Company's 

financial position, results of operations or liquidity.  

The Company, In the ordinary course of business, explores 

opportunities to reduce its costs in order to remain competitive in 

the marketplace. Preas where the Company focuses its review 

Include, but are not limited to, labor costs and fuel supply costs.  

In the labor area, over the past two years, the Company has 

reached agreements with all of the Company's major collective 

bargaining units which will permit It to manage its labor costs 

and practices effectively in the future. The Company also 

explores alternatives to effectively manage the size of its 

workforce. These alternatives include utilizing hiring freezes,
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outsourcing and offering employee separation packages. In the 
fuel supply area, the Company explores alternatives to effective

ly manage its overall fuel costs. These alternatives include 
diversifying fuel and transportation sources for the Company's 
fossil power plants, as well as restructuring or terminating exist
ing contracts with suppliers.  

Certain of these reduction alternatives could result in addi
tional investments being made at the Company's power plants 
in order to utilize different types of coal, or could require nonre

curring payments of employee separation benefits or nonrecur
ring payments to restructure or terminate existing fuel contracts 
with suppliers. Management is unable to predict which (if any), 
and to what extent, these alternatives to reduce its overall cost 
structure will be executed, as well as determine the impact of 
these actions on the Company's future financial position, results 
of operations or liquidity.  

DIVIDENDS 

Common stock dividends paid in 2000 resulted in a payout 
rate of 76% of the Company's net income. Dividends paid to 
common stockholders in relation to net cash provided by operat
ing activities for the same period were L41%.  

The Board of Directors does not set specific targets or pay
out parameters for dividend payments; however, the Board con
siders various issues, including the Company's historic earnings 
and cash flow; projected earnings, cash flow and potential cash 
flow requirements: dividend payout rates at other utilities; return 
on investments with similar risk characteristics; and overall 
business considerations. On February 9, 2001, the Rmeren 

Board of Directors declared a quarterly common stock dividend 
of 63.5 cents per share, payable March 31, 2001.  

RATE MATTERS 

In July 1995, the MoPSC approved an agreement establish
ing contractual obligations involving the Company's Missouri 
retail electric rates. Included was a three-year experimental 

alternative regulation plan ithe Original Plan) that ran from July I, 
1995, through June 30, 1998. R new three-year experimental 
alternative regulation plan (the New Plan) was included in the 

joint agreement authorized by the MoPSC in its February 1997 
order approving the Merger. The New Plan runs from July 1.  
1998 through June 30, 2001. On February 1, 2001, the Company, 
MoPSC staff, and other parties submitted filings to the MoPSC 
addressing the merits of extending the current experimental 
alternative regulation plan. In its filing, the Company supported 
an extension of this plan with certain modifications, including 
retail electric rate reductions and additional customer credits.  

The MoPSC staff filing noted several concerns with the current 
plan and suggested that under traditional cost of service 

ratemaking, an annualized electric rate decrease of at least $100 
million could be warranted. The Company has been engaged in 
discussions with the MoPEC staff and other parties in an effort

to address issues associated with the possible extension of the 
New Plan. Rt this time, the Company cannot predict the out
come of these discussions or the timing or amount of any future 
electric rate reductions.  

See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for a further discussion of the experimental 
alternative regulation plan and a discussion of other rate matters.  

ELECTRIC INDUSTRY RESTRUCTURING 

Steps taken and being considered at the federal and state 
levels continue to change the structure of the electric industry 
and utility regulation and encourage increased competition. Rt 
the federal level, the Energy Policy Rct of 1992 reduced various 
restrictions on the operation and ownership of independent 
power producers and gave the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission IFERC) the authority to order electric utilities to 
provide transmission access to third parties.  

During 2000 and in early 2001, deregulation laws estab
lished in the state of California, coupled with high energy 
prices, increasing demands for power by users in that state, 
transmission constraints, and limited generation resources, 
among other things, negatively impacted several major electric 
utilities in that state. Federal and state regulators and legisla
tors have proposed and implemented, in part, different courses 
of action to attempt to address these issues. The Company 
does not maintain utility operations in the state of California, 
nor does it provide energy directly to utilities in that state.  
Rt this time, the Company is uncertain what impact, if any.  
changes in deregulation laws will have on future federal and 
state deregulation laws (including the state of Missouri), which 
could directly impact the Company's future financial position, 
results of operations or liquidity.  

In Rpril 1996, the FERC issued Order 888 and Order 889.  
which are intended to promote competition in the wholesale 
electric market. The FERC requires transmission-owning public 
utilities, such as RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS, to provide trans
mission access and service to others in a manner similar and 
comparable to that which the utilities have by virtue of owner
ship. Order 888 requires that a single tariff be used by the utility 
in providing transmission service. Order 888 also provides 
for the recovery of strandable costs, under certain conditions, 
related to the wholesale business.  

Order 889 established the standards of conduct and infor
mation requirements that transmission owners must adhere 
to in doing business under the open access rule. Under Order 
889, utilities must obtain transmission service for their own 
use in the same manner their customers will obtain service, 
thus mitigating market power through control of transmission 
facilities. In addition, under Order 889, utilities must separate 
their merchant function (buying and selling wholesale power) 
from their transmission and reliability functions.
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In 1998, RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS joined a group of com

panies that originally supported the formation of the Midwest 

1I0. Rn ISO operates, but does not own, electric transmission 

systems and maintains system reliability and security, while 

facilitating wholesale and retail competition through the elimina

tion of "pancaked" transmission rates. The Midwest ISO is 

regulated by the FERC. The FERC conditionally approved the 

formation of the Midwest ISO in September 1998. The MoPSC 

and the Illinois Commerce Commission (ICC) have authorized 

RmerenUE and RmerenClPS to join the Midwest ISO.  

In December 1999, the FERC issued Order 2000 relating to 

Regional Transmission Organizations (RTOsI that would meet 

certain characteristics such as size and independence. RTOs, 

including 1SOs, are entities that ensure comparable and non

discriminatory access to regional electric transmission systems.  

Order 2000 calls on all transmission owners to Join RTOs.  

Following the announcements of Commonwealth Edison and 

Illinois Power of their intent to withdraw from the Midwest 1I0 

and join the RAliance RTO, the Company determined that the 

operational configuration of the Midwest ISO was unacceptable 

and announced its withdrawal in November 2000. The 

Company decided to withdraw to ensure the continued reliable 

and efficient operation of the Rmeren transmission system.  

Rs a result of the Company's decision to withdraw from the 

Midwest ISO, in the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company 

recorded a pretax nonrecurring charge to earnings of $25 million 

($15 million after income taxes, or 11 cents per share). This 

charge relates to the Company's estimated obligation under the 

Midwest ISO agreement for costs incurred by the Midwest 1S0, 

plus estimated exit costs.  

In January 2001, the Company announced that it had signed 

an agreement to join the RIliance RTO. Rlso, in January 2001, 

the FERC conditionally approved the formation, including the rate 

structure, of the Riliance ATO. Rmeren's withdrawal from the 

Midwest ISO and its membership in the Alliance RTO are 

subject to regulatory approvals. Rt this time, the Company is 

unable to determine the impact that its withdrawal from the 

Midwest ISO and its participation in the Rilllance RTO will have 

on its future financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.  

I nl0liS 

In December 1997, the Governor of Illinois signed the Electric 

Service Customer Choice and Rate Relief Law of 1997 (the Illinois 

Law) providing for electric utility restructuring in Illinois. This leg

islation introduces competition into the supply of electric energy 

at retail in Illinois.  

Major provisions of the Illinois Law include the phasing-in 

through 2002 of retail direct access, which allows customers to 

choose their electric generation suppliers. The phase-in of retail 

direct access began on October 1, 1999, with large commercial 

and industrial customers principally comprising the initial group.  

The remaining commercial and industrial customers in Illinois

were offered choice on December 31, 2000. Commercial and 

industrial customers in Illinois represent approximately 13% of the 

Company's total sales. Rs of December 31, 2000, the impact of 

retail direct access on the Company's financial condition, results 

of operations and liquidity was immaterial. Retail direct access 

will be offered to residential customers on May 1, 2002.  

In addition, the Illinois Law included a 5% rate decrease for 

residential customers that became effective in Rugust 1998.  

This rate decrease reduced electric revenues by approximately 

$114 million annually compared to pre-Illinois Law rates, based 

on estimated levels of sales and assuming normal weather 

conditions (see Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements for further information).  

In 1998, the Company eliminated its uniform fuel adjustment 

clauses IFRCs) as allowed by the Illinois Law, which has 

benefited shareholders since 1998 (see Note I - Summary of 

Significant Rccounting Policies under Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for further information). The Illinois Law 

contains a provision allowing for the potential recovery of a por

tion of strandable costs, which represent costs that would not 

be recoverable in a restructured environment, through a transition 

charge collected from customers who choose an alternate elec

tric supplier. In addition, the Illinois Law contains a provision 

requiring a portion of excess earnings (as defined under the 

Illinois Law) for the years 1998 through 2004L to be refunded to 

customers. See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.  

In conjunction with another provision of the Illinois Law, on 

May 1, 2000, following the receipt of all required state and federal 

regulatory approvals, RmerenCIPS transferred its electric gen

erating assets and liabilities, at historical net book value, to 

Generating Company, in exchange for a promissory note from 

Generating Company in the principal amount of approximately 

$552 million and Generating Company common stock (the 

Transferl. In addition, on June 30, 2000, Generating Company 

borrowed $50 million from Rmeren to assist with the future pur

chase of combustion turbine generating facilities and to meet 

working capital needs. The promissory notes bear interest at 7% 

and each have a term of five years payable based on a 10-year 

amortization. The transferred assets represent a generating 

capacity of approximately 2,900 megawatts. Rpproximately 
115% of AmerenCiPS' employees were transferred to Generating 

Company as part of the transaction.  

In conjunction with the Transfer, an electric power supply 

agreement was entered into between Generating Company and 

its newly created nonregulated affiliate, RmerenEnergy Marketing 

Company (Marketing Company), also a wholly owned subsidiary 

of RmerenEnergy Resources Company. Under this agreement, 

Marketing Company is entitled to purchase all of Generating 

Company's energy and capacity. This agreement may not be 

terminated until at least December 31, 20011. In addition,
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Marketing Company entered into an electric power supply 

agreement with RmerenCIPS to supply it sufficient energy 

and capacity to meet its obligations as a public utility through 
December 31, 200i4. This agreement expires December 31, 

200'4. Power will continue to be jointly dispatched between 

RmerenUE and Generating Company.  

The creation of the new subsidiaries and the transfer of 

RmerenCIPS' generating assets and liabilities had no effect on 
the financial statements of Rmeren as of the date of transfer.  

': S .P LiO 1 i 

In Missouri, where approximately 70% of the Company's 

retail electric revenues are derived, restructuring bills were 
introduced by the Missouri legislature in 1999 and 2000. The 
Company is unable to predict the timing or ultimate outcome 

of electric utility restructuring in the state of Missouri: however.  
management does not believe that comprehensive restructuring 

legislation will be passed in 2001.  

m 'y 

In summary, the potential negative consequences associat
ed with electric industry restructuring could be significant and 
could include the impairment and writedown of certain assets, 
including generation-related plant and net regulatory assets, 

lower revenues, reduced profit margins and increased costs 
of capital and operations expenses. Conversely, a deregulated 
marketplace can provide earnings enhancement opportunities.  

The Company will continue to focus on cost control to ensure 
that it maintains a competitive cost structure, which includes 

the termination of high-cost coal supply contracts (see Note 12 

- Commitments and Contingencies under Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for further information). Rlso, in Illinois, 
the Company's actions included the establishment of a nonreg

ulated generating subsidiary and the expansion of its genera
tion assets, which strengthened its trading and marketing oper
ations to maintain its current customers and obtain new cus
tomers, and the enhancement of its information systems.  

Management believes that these actions position the Company 

well in the competitive Illinois marketplace. In Missouri, the 
Company is actively involved in all major deliberations taking 
place surrounding electric industry restructuring in an effort to 

ensure that restructuring legislation, if any, contains an orderly 
transition and is equitable to the Company's shareholders. Pt 
this time, the Company is unable to predict the ultimate impact 

of electric industry restructuring on the Company's future finan

cial condition, results of operations or liquidity.  

CONTINGENCIES 

See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters, Note 12 - Commitments 
and Contingencies and Note 13 - Callaway Nuclear Plant under 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for material issues 

existing at December 31, 2000.

MARKET RISK RELATED TO 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 

COMMODITY INSTRUMENTS 

Market risk represents the risk of changes in value of a 

physical asset or a financial instrument, derivative or non-deriva

tive, caused by fluctuations in market variables [e.g., interest 
rates, equity prices, commodity prices, etc.). The following dis
cussion of the Company's risk management activities includes 

"forward-looking" statements that involve risks and uncertain

ties. Rctual results could differ materially from those projected 

in the "forward-looking" statements. The Company handles 

market risks in accordance with established policies, which 
may include entering into various derivative transactions. In the 
normal course of business, the Company also faces risks that 
are either non-financial or non-quantifiable. Such risks principally 
include business, legal, operational and credit risk and are not 
represented in the following analysis.  

The Company's risk management objective is to optimize 
its physical generating assets within prudent risk parameters.  

Risk management policies are set by a Risk Management 

Steering Committee, which is comprised of senior-level Rmeren 
officers.  

•nterest Rate Risk 

The Company is exposed to market risk through changes in 
interest rates through its issuance of both long-term and short
term variable-rate debt and fixed-rate debt, commercial paper 

and auction-rate preferred stock. The Company manages its 

interest rate exposure by controlling the amount of these instru
ments it holds within its total capitalization portfolio and by 

monitoring the effects of market changes in interest rates.  

If interest rates increase 1% in 2001, as compared to 2000, 
the Company's interest expense would increase by approxi

mately $9 million and net income would decrease by approxi
mately $5 million. This amount has been determined using 
the assumptions that the Company's outstanding variable-rate 

debt, commercial paper and auction-rate preferred stock, as of 
December 31, 2000, continued to be outstanding throughout 

2001, and that the average interest rates for these instruments 
increased 1% over 2000. The model does not consider the 

effects of the reduced level of potential overall economic activity 
that would exist in such an environment. In the event of a sig
nificant change in interest rates, management would likely take 
actions to further mitigate its exposure to this market risk.  
However, due to the uncertainty of the specific actions that 

would be taken and their possible effects, the sensitivity analy
sis assumes no change in the Company's financial structure.  

Commodity Price Risk 

The Company is exposed to changes in market prices for 
natural gas, fuel and electricity. Several techniques are utilized 

to mitigate the Company's risk, including utilizing derivative
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financial instruments. R derivative is a contract whose value 

Is dependent on, or derived from, the value of some underlying 

asset. The derivative financial instruments that the Company 

uses (primarily forward contracts, futures contracts and option 

contracts) are dictated by risk management policies.  

With regard to Its natural gas utility business, the 

Company's exposure to changing market prices Is In large part 

mitigated by the fact that the Company has purchased gas 

adlustment clauses (PGAs) in place in both its Missouri and 

Illinois jurisdictions. The PGR allows the Company to pass on 

to Its customers its prudently Incurred costs of natural gas.  

The Company has a subsidiary, AmerenEnergy Fuels and 

Services Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of 

AmerenEnergy Resources Company, which is responsible for 

providing fuel procurement and gas supply services on behalf 

of the Company's operating subsidiaries, and for managing fuel 

and natural gas price risks. Fixed price forward contracts, as 

well as futures and options, are all instruments, which may be 

used to manage these risks. The majority of the Company's 

fuel supply contracts are physical forward contracts. Since the 

Company does not have a provision similar to the PGR for its 

electric operations, the Company has entered Into several long

term contracts with various suppliers to purchase coal and 

nuclear fuel to manage Its exposure to fuel prices (see Note 12 

Commitments and Contingencies under Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for further information). With regard to 

the Company's nonregulated electric generation operations, the 

Company Is exposed to changes in market prices for natural 

gas to the extent it must purchase natural gas to run Its com

bustion turbine generators. The Company's natural gas procure

ment strategy is designed to ensure reliable and immediate 

delivery of natural gas to its intermediate and peaking units by 

optimizing transportation and storage options and minimizing 

cost and price risk by structuring various supply agreements to 

maintain access to multiple gas pools and supply basins and 

reducing the Impact of price volatility.  

With regard to the Company's exposure to commodity price 

risk for purchased power and excess electricity sales, the 

Company has a subsidiary, AmerenEnergy, whose primary 

responsibility Includes managing market risks associated with 

changing market prices for electricity purchased and sold on 

behalf of AmerenUE and Generating Company.  

Although the Company cannot completely eliminate the 

effects of elevated prices and price volatility, Its strategy Is 

designed to minimize the effect of these market conditions on 

the results of operations. The Company's gas procurement 

strategy includes procuring natural gas under a portfolio of 

agreements with price structures, including fixed price, Indexed 

price and embedded price hedges such as caps and collars.  

The Company's strategy also utilizes physical assets through 

storage, operator and balancing agreements to minimize price

volatility. The Company's electric marketing strategy is to 

extract additional value from its generation facilities by selling 

energy in excess of needs for term sales and purchasing ener

gy when the market price Is less than the cost of generation.  

The Company's primary use of derivatives has been limited to 

transactions that are expected to reduce price risk exposure 

for the Company.  

Equity Price Risk 

The Company maintains trust funds, as required by the 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission and Missouri and Illinois state 

laws, to fund certain costs of nuclear decommissioning [see 

Note 13 - Callaway Nuclear Plant under Notes to Consolidated 

Financial Statements for further informationl. As of December 

31, 2000, these funds were invested primarily In domestic equi

ty securities, fixed-rate, fixed-income securities, and cash and 

cash equivalents. By maintaining a portfolio that includes long

term equity Investments, the Company Is seeking to maximize 

the returns to be utilized to fund nuclear decommissioning 

costs. However, the equity securities included in the 

Company's portfolio are exposed to price fluctuations In equity 

markets, and the fixed-rate, fixed-income securities are exposed 

to changes in Interest rates. The Company actively monitors its 

portfolio by benchmarking the performance of its investments 

against certain indices and by maintaining, and periodically 

reviewing, established target allocation percentages of the 

assets of its trusts to various investment options. The 

Company's exposure to equity price market risk is, in large part, 

mitigated, due to the fact that the Company Is currently allowed 

to recover its decommissioning costs in its rates.  

ACCOUNTING MATTERS 

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 

(FASBI Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 

(SFASI No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 

Hedging Activities." SFAS 133 establishes accounting and 

reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain 

derivative Instruments embedded in other contracts, and for 

hedging activities and requires recognition of all derivatives as 

either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet measured at fair 

value. The intended use of the derivatives and their designation 

as either a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge, or a foreign cur

rency hedge will determine when the gains or losses on the 

derivatives are to be reported in earnings and when they are to 

be reported as a component of other comprehensive income In 

stockholders' equity. In June 1999, the FASB issued SFAS 

No. 137, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 

Activitles-Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No.  

133," which delayed the effective date of SFRS 133 to all fiscal 

quarters of all fiscal years, beginning after June 15, 2000. In 

June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for 

Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -
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an amendment of FRSB Statement No. 133," which amended 

certain accounting and reporting standards of SFRS 133. The 

Company is adopting SFRS 133 in the first quarter of 2001.  

The Company expects the impact of this standard to result in 

a cumulative charge as of January 1, 2001 of $7 million after 

income taxes to the income statement and a cumulative adjust

ment of $11 million to decrease stockholders' equity. However, 

the Derivatives Implementation Group (DIG), a committee of the 

FRSB responsible for providing guidance on the implementation of 

SFRS 133, has not reached a conclusion regarding the appropriate 

accounting treatment of certain types of energy contracts under 

SFRS 133. The Company is unable to predict when this issue will 

ultimately be resolved and the impact the resolution will have on 

the Company's future financial position, results of operations or 

liquidity. Implementation of SFRS 133 will likely increase the 

volatility of the Company's earnings in future periods.  

EFFECTS OF INFLATION 

AND CHANGING PRICES 

The Company's rates for retail electric and gas utility service 

are generally regulated by the MoPSC and the ICC. Non-retail 

electric rates are regulated by the FERC.  

The current replacement cost of the Company's utility plant 

substantially exceeds its recorded historical cost. Under existing 

regulatory practice, only the historical cost of plant is recover

able from customers. Rs a result, cash flows designed to pro

vide recovery of historical costs through depreciation might not 

be adequate to replace plants in future years. Regulatory prac

tice has been modified for the Company's generation portion of 

its business in its Illinois jurisdiction and may be modified in 

the future for the Company's Missouri jurisdiction (see Note 2 

Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further information). In addition, the impact on 

common stockholders is mitigated to the extent depreciable 

property is financed with debt that is repaid with dollars of less 

purchasing power.  

In the Illinois retail jurisdiction, the cost of fuel for electric 

generation, which was previously reflected in billings to cus

tomers through uniform fuel adiustment clauses, has been 

added to base rates as provided for in the Illinois Law (see Note 

2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial 

Statements for further information). In the Missouri retail jurisdic

tion, the cost of fuel for electric generation is reflected in base 

rates with no provision for changes to be made through a fuel 

adjustment clause. In Illinois and Missouri, changes in gas 

costs relating to retail gas utility services are generally reflected 

in billings to customers through purchased gas adjustment 
clauses. The Company is impacted by changes in market prices

for natural gas to the extent it must purchase natural gas to run 

its combustion turbine generators. The Company has structured 

various supply agreements to maintain access to multiple gas 

pools and supply basins to minimize the impact to the financial 

statements (see discussion above under "Commodity Price Risk" 

for further information).  

Inflation continues to be a factor affecting operations, 

earnings, stockholders' equity and financial performance.  

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT 

Statements made in this annual report to stockholders 

which are not based on historical facts, are "forward-looking" 

and, accordingly, involve risks and uncertainties that could 

cause actual results to differ materially from those discussed.  

RIthough such "forward-looking" statements have been made 

in good faith and are based on reasonable assumptions, there 

is no assurance that the expected results will be achieved.  

These statements include (without limitation) statements as to 

future expectations, beliefs, plans, strategies, obiectives, 
events, conditions, and financial performance. In connection 

with the "Safe Harbor" provisions of the Private Securities 

Litigation Reform Rct of 199S, the Company is providing this 

cautionary statement to identify important factors that could 

cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated.  

The following factors, in addition to those discussed elsewhere 

in this report and in subsequent securities filings, could cause 

results to differ materially from management expectations as 

suggested by such "forward-looking" statements: the effects 

of regulatory actions, including changes in regulatory policy; 

changes in laws and other governmental actions; the impact 

on the Company of current regulations related to the phasing-in 

of the opportunity for some customers to choose alternative 

energy suppliers in Illinois; the effects of increased competition 

in the future, due to, among other things, deregulation of cer

tain aspects of the Company's business at both the state and 

federal levels; the effects of withdrawal from the Midwest ISO 

and membership in the RIliance RTO; future market prices for 

fuel and purchased power, electricity, and natural gas, includ

ing the use of financial instruments, average rates for electricity 

in the Midwest: business and economic conditions; interest 

rates; weather conditions; fuel prices and availability; genera

tion plant construction, installation and performance; the 

impact of current environmental regulations on utilities and 

generating companies and the expectation that more stringent 

requirements will be introduced over time, which could poten

tially have a negative financial effect; monetary and fiscal poli

cies; future wages and employee benefits costs; and legal and 

administrative proceedings.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 
Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Rmounts Year Ended December 31,

Operating Revenues: 

Electric 

Gas 

Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses

Operations: 

Fuel and purchased power 

Gas 

Other 

Maintenance 

Depreciation and amortization 

Income taxes 

Other taxes 

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income 

Other Income and (Deductions]: 

Rllowance for equity funds used during construction 

Miscellaneous, net 

Total Other Income and (Deductions] 

Income Before Interest Charges and Preferred Dividends 

Interest Charges and Preferred Dividends: 

Interest 

Rllowance for borrowed funds used during construction 

Preferred dividends of subsidiaries 

Net Interest Charges and Preferred Dividends 

NET INCOME 
Earnings per Common Share - Basic and Diluted 

(based on average shares outstanding) 

AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING

6510,310 

5,298 

111,4100! 

898 

6541,208 

179.706 

(8,292) 

12.700 

18L4,114L

562,5119 

7,161 

110,813) 

(3,652! 

558,897 

168,275 

(7,123) 

12,650 

173,802

571,221 

5,001 

(2,609) 

2,392 

573,513 

181,580 

(7,026) 

12,562 

187,116

$ 4157,094I $ 385,095 $ 386,4A97 

$3.33 $2.81 $2.82 

137.215,462 137,215,-162 137,215,462

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

2000

$3,525,597 

323,886 

6,366 

3,855,8419 

1,025,221 

209,4567 
66L4,5L44 

1,899,232 

367,921 

382,129 

301,192 

265,055 

3,215,539

1999

$3,287,590 

228,298 

7,743 

3,523,631 

973,277 

131,4149 

629,L482 

1,73q,208 

370,873 

350,539 

258,870 

2416,592 

2,961,082

1998

$3,094, 211 

216,681 

7,316 

3,318,208 

780,123 

118,8416 

6147,157 

1,5416,126 

312,011 

3118,1403 

267,673 

272,7711 

2,7546,987
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
Thousands of Dollars 

Assets 

Property and Plant, at Original Cost: 

Electric 

Gas 

Other 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Construction work in progress: 

Nuclear fuel in process 

Other 

Total Property and Plant, Net 

Investments and Other Assets: 

Investments 

Nuclear decommissioning trust fund 

Other 

Total Investments and Other Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Rccounts receivable - trade (less allowance for doubtful 

accounts of $8,028 and $7,136, respectively) 

Other accounts and notes receivable 

Materials and supplies, at average cost: 

Fossil fuel 

Other 

Other 

Total Current Assets

Regulatory Assets: 

Deferred income taxes 

Other 

Total Regulatory Assets

TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,7141,1430 $ 9,177,615

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

December 31, 2000 1999

$12,053 ,411l 

491,708 

92,696 

12,637,815 

5,891,.310 

6,746,L475 

88,830 

329,880 

7,165,185 

66,L476 

186,760 

80,737 

333,973

194,882 

370,1441 

20,668 

123.11-43 

130,081 

39,791 

879,006 

622,520 

176,931 

799,451

$12,68L4,366 

509,7146 

97,214-I 

13,291,326 

6,204,.367 

7,086,959 

117,789 

500,92L4 

7,705,672 

-40,235 

190,625 

97,630 

328,190

125,968 

L47L[,1425 

56,529 

107,572 

119,L478 

37,210 

921,182 

600,100 

158.986 

759,086
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Thousands of Dollars, Except Share and Per Share Rmounts 

Capital and Liabilities 

Capitalization: 

Common stock. $.01 par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized 

137,215,462 shares outstanding (Note 6) 

Other paid-in capital, principally premium on common stock 

Retained earnings (see accompanying statement) 

Total Common Stockholders' Equity 

Preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption (Note 6) 

Long-term debt (Note 8) 

Total Capitalization 

Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries 

Current Liabilities: 

Current maturity of long-term debt (Note 81 

Short-term debt 

Rccounts and wages payable 

Accumulated deferred income taxes 

Taxes accrued 

Other 

Total Current Liabilities 

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2, 12 and 131 

Accumulated deferred income taxes 

Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 

Regulatory liability 

Other deferred credits and liabilities

$ 9714,'430 $ 9,177,615TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

December 31, 2000 1999

$ 1,372 
1,582,501 

1,505,827 

3,089,700 

235,197 

2,144L8,44--8 

5,773,3L45 

4,010

60,857 
V-18,165 

3'41,27'4 

70,719 

155,396 

300,74-7 

1,077,168

1,L493,6314 
170,834L 

188,404 

L170,220

$ 1,372 
1,581,339 

1,613,960 

3,196.671 

235,197 

2,745.068 

6,176,936

3,94O

203,260 

'462,92'4 

L-9,829 

124,706 

300,798 

1,185,961

1.54L0,536 

164,120 

183,541 

L459.396
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Thousands of Dollars Year Ended December 31, 20OD 1999 1998 

Cash Flows From Operating: 

Net income $457,0941 $385,095 $ 385697 

Rdjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 369,795 3L40,329 338,L488 
Rmortization of nuclear fuel 37,101 36,068 36,855 
Rilowance for funds used during construction (13.590) (141,2841) (12,0271 
Deferred income taxes, net 1,699 122.5781 (24,8L49) 
Deferred investment tax credits, net 16,71 L4) (7,998) 1I1.428) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net (139,8-45) 3L4,484 6.(15,5581 
Materials and supplies 25,174 (7,L4321 (18,209) 
Rccounts and wages payable 121,550 55.4.156 18,573) 
Taxes accrued (30,690) L41,290 3,5140 
Other, net 32,908 75,1415 119,608 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 855,582 917,575 803,244LI 

Cash Flows From Investing: 

Construction expenditures (928,727) 1570.8071 13214,905) 
RAlowance for funds used during construction 13,590 114,2814 12.027 
Nuclear fuel expenditures (21,527) (21,901) {201-132) 
Other 26,2L41 20,218 10,L4914 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (910.L423) (558,206) (322,816) 

Cash Flows From Financing: 

Dividends on common stock (3418,5271 13148,5271 (3418,5271 

Redemptions: 

Nuclear fuel lease (11,355) 115,1381 (67,7201 
Short-term debt (17,7381 
Long-term debt (1420,991) (174,41111) (273,41141) 

Issuances: 

Nuclear fuel lease 9,109 654.972 15,4139 
Short-term debt 55,095 79,637 
Long-term debt 702.600 152,150 2145,000 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (114,073) (2411.350) (14415,990) 

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (158,9141 118.019 314,1438 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 19L4,882 76,853 142,1425 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $125,968 $ 19L4,882 $ 76,863 

Cash paid during the periods: 

Interest [net of amount capitalizedi $168,550 $152,70S $ 17S,158 
Income taxes $ 311,8148 $2147,428 $298,589

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS 
Thousands of Dollars Year Ended December 31, 2000 

Balance at Beginning of Period $1,505,827 $I,'

Rdd: 

Net income 

Deduct: 

Dividends 

BALANCE AT CLOSE OF PERIOD

1457,09L4

1999 

L172,200 

385,095

348,961 351.,468 

$1,613,960 $1,505,827

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION 
(Unauditedl 

Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Rmounts 

Quarter Ended: Operating

March 31, 2000 (a] 

March 31, 1999 (a) 

June 30, 2000 (b) 

June 30, 1999 

September 30, 2000 (c) 

September 30, 1999 

December 31, 2000 (d) 

December 31, 1999 (el

Revenues 

$ 825,376 

735,902 

9140,30L4 

859.8841 

1,195,111 

1,193,t462 

89L4,758 

7341.383

Operating
Income 

$108,578 

99,687 

159,206 

130,512 

305,685 

296,727 

66,8L41 

35,623

Net Income 
(Loss) 

$ 61,393 

514,359 

113,585 

86,519 

256,137 

2149,819 

25,979 

(5.6021

Earnings (Loss) 
Per Common Share 

$ .A5 

.40 

.83 

.63 

1.87 

1.82 

.19 

(.O4)

(a) The first quarter of 2000 and 1999 Included credits to Missouri electric customers that reduced net income approximately $6 million, 
or 4 cents per share and $11 million, or 6 cents per share, respectively.  

(b] The second quarter of 2000 included credits to Mtssour electric customers that reduced net income approximately $3 million, 
or 2 cents per share.  

(ci The third quarter of 2000 included credits to Missouri electric customers that reduced net income approximately $11 million, 
or 8 cents per share.  

(d] The fourth quarter of 2000 included credits to Missouri electric customers that reduced net income approximately $17 million, 
or 12 cents per share. The fourth quarter of 2000 also included a nonrecurring charge related to the withdrawal from the 
Midwest 150 that reduced net Income $15 million, or 11 cents per share. (See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements for further Information.) 

tel The fourth quarter of 1999 included adjustments that Increased earnings $9 million, or 5 cents per share as a result of a Report and 
Order received from the Missouri Public Service Commission relating to the Company s electric alternative regulation plan. (See Note 2
Regulatory Matters under Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further Information.) The fourth quarter of 1999 also included 
a $31 million, or 23 cents per share charge for coal supply contract terminations. (See Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies under 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.) In addition, Callaway Nuclear Plant refueling expenses, which 
decreased net income approximately $22 million, or 15 cents per share, were included In the fourth quarter of 1999.  

Other changes on quarterly earnings are due to the effect of weather on sales and other factors that are characteristic 
of public utility operations.  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

1998 

$1,143q,658 

386,4-197 

3L48,955 

$1M472,200
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

Rmeren Corporation (Rmeren or the Companyl is a holding com

pany registered under the Public Utility Holding Company Rct of 

1935 (PUHCR). In December 1997, Union Electric Company 

(RmerenUE) and CIPSCO Incorporated ICIPSCOQ combined to form 
Rmeren, with RmerenUE and CIPSCO's subsidiaries, Central Illinois 

Public Service Company (RmerenCIPS) and CIPSCO Investment 

Company ICIC), becoming subsidiaries of Rmeren (the Merger). The 

outstanding preferred shares of RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS were 

not affected by the Merger.  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include 

the accounts of Rmeren and its subsidiaries (collectively, the 
Company). ill subsidiaries for which the Company owns directly 

or indirectly more than 50% of the voting stock are included as 

consolidated subsidiaries. Rmeren's primary operating companies, 

RFmerenUE, RmerenCIPS, and RmerenEnergy Generating Company 
(Generating Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of 

AmerenEnergy Resources Company, are engaged principally in the 
generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electric energy 
and the purchase, distribution, transportation and sale of natural 

gas. The operating companies serve 1.5 million electric and 
300,000 natural gas customers in a 441,500-sQuare-mile area of 
Missouri and Illinois. The Company's other principal subsidiaries 

include: CIC, an investing subsidiary; RmerenEnergy, Inc., an 

energy trading and marketing subsidiary; Rmeren Development 
Company, a nonregulated products and services subsidiary; 

RmerenEnergy Resources Company, a holding company for the 
Company's nonregulated generating operations; and Rmeren 

Services Company, a shared support services subsidiary. The 
Company also has a 60% interest in Electric Energy, Inc. (EEl). EEl 

owns and/or operates electric generation and transmission facilities 
in Illinois that supply electric power primarily to a uranium enrich

ment plant located in Paducah, Kentucky. RII significant intercom
pany balances and transactions have been eliminated from the 

consolidated financial statements.  

References to the Company are to Rmeren on a consolidated 

basis; however, in certain circumstances, the subsidiaries are sepa
rately referred to in order to distinguish among their different business 

activities.  

In conjunction with the Illinois Electric Service Customer Choice 

and Rate Relief Law of 1997, on May 1, 2000, following the receipt 

of all required state and federal regulatory approvals, RmerenCIPS 

transferred its electric generating assets and liabilities, at historical 

net book value, to Generating Company (see Note 2 - Regulatory 

Matters for further discussion). The transfer of RmerenCIPS' gener

ating assets and liabilities had no effect on the financial statements 

of Ameren as of the date of transfer.

Reg ulation 

Rmeren is subject to regulation by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC). Certain of Rmeren's subsidiaries are also regu
lated by the Missouri Public Service Commission (MoPSCI, Illinois 

Commerce Commission (ICC] and the Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission (FERC). The accounting policies of the Company 

conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GRRP).  

See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters for further information.  

Property and Pla'nt 

The cost of additions to, and betterments of, units of property 

and plant is capitalized. Cost includes labor, material, applicable 

taxes and overheads. Rn allowance for funds used during con

struction is also added for the Company's regulated assets, and 
interest during construction is added for nonregulated assets.  

Maintenance expenditures and the renewal of items not considered 

units of property are charged to income, as incurred. When units of 

depreciable property are retired, the original cost and removal cost, 

less salvage value, are charged to accumulated depreciation.  

Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided over the estimated lives of the various 
classes of depreciable property by applying composite rates on a 
straight-line basis. The provision for depreciation in 2000, 1999, 
and 1998 was approximately 3% of the average depreciable cost.  

Fuel and Gas Costs 
In the Missouri and Illinois retail electric utility jurisdictions, the 

cost of fuel for electric generation is reflected in base rates with no 
provision for changes to be made through fuel adjustment clauses.  

(See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters for further information.l In the 

Illinois and Missouri retail gas utility jurisdictions, changes in gas 
costs are generally reflected in billings to gas customers through 

purchased gas adjustment clauses.  

Nuclear Fuel 

The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to fuel expense on a 
unit-of-production basis. Spent fuel disposal cost is charged to 

expense, based on net kilowatthours generated and sold.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and tempo
rary investments purchased with an original maturity of three 

months or less.  

Income Taxes 

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal 
tax return. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for 
the tax consequences of transactions that have been treated differ

ently for financial reporting and tax return purposes, measured 

using statutory tax rates.  

Investment tax credits utilized in prior years were deferred and 

are being amortized over the useful lives of the related properties.
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Allowance for Funds 
Used During Construction 

Allowance for funds used during construction (ARF) is a utility 
industry accounting practice whereby the cost of borrowed funds 
and the cost of equity funds [preferred and common stockholders' 
equity) applicable to the Company's regulated construction program 
are capitalized as a cost of construction. ARFC does not represent 
a current source of cash funds. This accounting practice offsets 
the effect on earnings of the cost of financing current construction, 
and treats such financing costs in the same manner as construc
tion charges for labor and materials.  

Under accepted ratemaking practice, cash recovery of rFC, as 
well as other construction costs, occurs when completed projects 
are placed in service and reflected in customer rates. The ARFC 
ranges of rates used were 5% - 10% during 2000, 5% - 10% during 
1999, and 6% - 9% during 1998.  

Unamortized Debt Discount, 
Premium and Expense 

Discount, premium and expense associated with long-term debt 
are amortized over the lives of the related issues.  

Revenue 
The Company accrues an estimate of electric and gas revenues 

for service rendered, but unbilled, at the end of each accounting 
period.  

Energy Contracts 
The Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting 

Standards Board (EITF) Issue 98-10, "Rccounting for Energy Trading 
and Risk Management Activities" became effective on January 1, 
1999. EITF 98-10 provides guidance on the accounting for energy 
contracts entered into for the purchase or sale of electricity, natural 
gas, capacity and transportation. The EITF reached a consensus in 
EITF 96-10 that sales and purchase activities being performed need 
to be classified as either trading or non-trading. Furthermore, trans
actions that are determined to be trading activities would be recog
nized on the balance sheet measured at fair value, with changes in 
fair market value included in earnings. AmerenEnergy, Inc. enters 
into contracts for the sale and purchase of energy on behalf of 
AmerenUE and Generating Company. Currently, virtually all of 
AmerenEnergy's transactions are considered non-trading activities 
and are accounted for using the accrual or settlement method, 
which represents industry practice. See Note 15 - Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 for information related to 
adoption of a new accounting standard in 2001.  

Software 
Statement of Position (SOP) 98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of 

Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use" became 
effective on January 1, 1999. SOP 98-1 provides guidance on 
accounting for the costs of computer software developed or 
obtained for Internal use. Under SOP 98-1, certain costs may be 
capitalized and amortized over some future period.

Evaluation of Assets for Impairment 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFASI No. 121, 

"Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long
Lived Assets to be Disposed Of' prescribes general standards for 
the recognition and measurement of impairment losses. The 
Company determines if long-lived assets are impaired by comparing 
their undiscounted expected future cash flows to their carrying 
amount. An impairment loss is recognized if the undiscounted 
expected future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the 
asset. SFAS 121 also requires that regulatory assets which are no 
longer probable of recovery through future revenues be charged to 
earnings (see Note 2 - Regulatory Matters for further information).  
As of December 31, 2000, no impairment was identified.  

Stock Compensation Plans 
The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion IAPB) 

25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" in accounting for 
its plans. See Note 11 - Stock Option Plans for further information.  

Earnings Per Share 
The Company's calculation of basic and diluted earnings per 

share resulted in the same earnings per share amounts for each of 
the years 2000, 1999 and 1998. The reconciling item in each of the 
years is comprised of assumed stock option conversions, which 
increased the number of shares outstanding in the diluted earnings 
per share calculation by 183,201 shares, 38,786 shares and 29,787 

shares in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.  

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GRAP 
requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions.  
Such estimates and assumptions affect reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  

Re class if ications 
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years' financial 

statements to conform with 2000 reporting.  

NOTE 2 - REGULATORY MATTERS 
Missouri Electric 

In July 1995, the MoPSC approved an agreement establishing 
contractual obligations involving the Company's Missouri retail elec
tric rates. Included was a three-year experimental alternative regu
lation plan (the Original Plan) that ran from July 1, 1995, through 
June 30. 1998, which provided that earnings in those years in 
excess of a 12.61% regulatory return on equity (ROE) be shared 
equally between customers and stockholders, and earnings above 
a I4% ROE be credited to customers. The formula for computing the 
credit used twelve-month results ending June 30, rather than calen
dar year earnings. In 1998, the Company recorded an estimated 
$L43 million credit for the final year of the Original Plan, which 
reduced earnings $26 million, or 18 cents per share.
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The MoPSC staff proposed adjustments to the Company's esti
mated customer credit for the final year of the Original Plan ended 

June 30, 1998, which were the subject of regulatory proceedings 

before the MoPSC in 1999. In Oecember 1999, the MoPSC issued a 

Report and Order [Order) concerning these proposed adjustments.  

Based on the provisions of that Order, the Company revised its esti

mated final year credit of the Original Plan to $31 million in the quar

ter ended December 31, 1999. Subsequently, the Company filed a 

request for rehearing of the Order with the MoPSC, asking that it 

reconsider its decision to adopt certain of the MoPSC staffs adjust

ments. The request was denied by the MoPSC and in February 

2000, the Company filed a Petition for Writ of Review with the 

Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri, requesting that the Order be 

reversed. The appeal is pending and the ultimate outcome cannot 

be predicted; however, the final decision is not expected to materi

ally impact the financial condition, results of operations or liquidity 

of the Company. P partial stay of the Order was granted by the 

Court pending the appeal.  

R new three-year experimental alternative regulation plan (the 

New Plan) was included in the joint agreement authorized by the 

MoPSC in its February 1997 order approving the Merger. Like the 

Original Plan, the New Plan requires that earnings over a 12.51% 

ROE up to a 1i4% ROE be shared equally between customers and 

stockholders. The New Plan also returns to customers 90% of all 

earnings above a 1IL% ROE up to a 16% ROE. Earnings above a 16% 

ROE are credited entirely to customers. The New Plan runs from 

July 1, 1998 through June 30, 2001. In November 2000, the 

MoPRC approved a stipulation and agreement of the parties regard

ing the credit for the plan year ended June 30, 1999 of $22 million, 

which was paid. Pt December 31, 2000. the Company has record

ed estimated credits that the Company expects to pay its Missouri 

electric customers of $50 million and $35 million for the plan 

years ended June 30. 2001 and June 30, 2000, respectively.  

During the Year ended December 31, 2000, the Company recorded 

estimated credits in total of $55 million for plan years under the 

New Plan, compared to $33 million in the year ago period. These 

credits were reflected as a reduction in electric revenues. The 

final amount of the credits will depend on several factors, including 

the Company's earnings for the respective 12 months ended 

June 30, 2001.  

The joint agreement approved by the MoPSC in its February 1997 

Order approving the Merger also provided for a Missouri electric rate 

decrease, retroactive to September 1. 1998, based on the weather

adjusted average annual credits to customers under the Original 

Plan. The rate decrease was impacted by the Order issued by the 

MoPSC in December 1999 relating to the estimated credit for the 

third year of the Original Plan and a settlement reached between 

Rmeren, the MoPSC staff and other parties relating to the calculation 

of the weather-adjusted credits. Based on those results, Rmeren 

estimates that its Missouri electric rate decrease will be $17 million 

on an annualized basis. This estimate is subject to the final 

outcome of the above-referenced court appeal of the Order.

On February 1, 2001, the Company, MoPSC staff, and other 

parties submitted filings to the MoPSC addressing the merits of 

extending the current experimental alternative regulation plan. In its 

filing, the Company supported an extension of this plan with certain 

modifications, including retail electric rate reductions and additional 

customer credits. The MoPSC staff filing noted several concerns 

with the current plan and suggested that under traditional cost of 

service ratemaking, an annualized electric rate decrease of at least 

$100 million could be warranted. The Company has been engaged 

in discussions with the MoPSC staff and other parties in an effort 

to address issues associated with possible extension of the New 

Plan. Pt this time, the Company cannot predict the outcome of 

these discussions or the timing or amount of any future electric 

rate reductions.  

Gas 

In October 2000, the MoPSC approved a $14 million annual rate 

increase for natural gas service in RmerenUE's Missouri jurisdiction.  

The rate increase became effective November 1, 2000.  

In February 1999, the ICC approved a $9 million total annual 

rate increase for natural gas service in RmerenUE's and 

RmerenCIPS' Illinois jurisdictions. The increase became effective 

in February 1999.  

Midwest ISO 

In 1998, RmerenUE and RmerenClPS joined a group of compa

nies that originally supported the formation of the Midwest 

Independent System Operator (Midwest ISO). Rn ISO operates, but 

does not own, electric transmission systems and maintains system 

reliability and security, while facilitating wholesale and retail compe

tition through the elimination of "pancaked" transmission rates.  

The Midwest ISO is regulated by the FERC. The FERC conditionally 

approved the formation of the Midwest ISO in September 1998. The 

MoPSC and the ICC have authorized RmerenUE and PmerenCIPS to 

join the Midwest ISO.  

In December 1999, the FERC issued Order 2000 relating to 

Regional Transmission Organizations IRTOs) that would meet cer

tain characteristics such as size and independence. RTOs, includ

ing ISOs, are entities that ensure comparable and non-discriminato

ry access to regional electric transmission systems. Order 2000 

calls on all transmission owners to join RTOs.  

Following the announcements of Commonwealth Edison and 

Illinois Power of their intent to withdraw from the Midwest ISO and 

join the Riliance Regional Transmission Organization (Alliance RTO), 

the Company determined that the operational configuration of the 

Midwest ISO was unacceptable and announced its withdrawal in 

November 2000. The Company decided to withdraw to ensure the 

continued reliable and efficient operation of the Rmeren transmis

sion system. Rs a result of the Company's decision to withdraw 

from the Midwest ISO, in the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company 

recorded a pretax nonrecurring charge to earnings of $25 million 

l$15 million after income taxes, or 11 cents per share). This charge 

relates to the Company's estimated obligation under the Midwest
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ISO agreement for costs incurred by the Midwest ISO, plus 

estimated exit costs.  

In January 2001, the Company announced that it had signed 

an agreement to join the Plliance RTO. Rlso, In January 2001, 

the FERC conditionally approved the formation, including the rate 

structure, of the Plliance RTO. Rmeren's withdrawal from the 

Midwest ISO and its membership in the Plliance RTO are subject 

to regulatory approvals. Pt this time, the Company is unable to 

determine the impact that Its withdrawal from the Midwest ISO and 

Its participation In the Alliance RTO will have on its future financial 

condition, results of operations or liquidity.  

Illinois Electric Restructuring 

and Related Matters 

In December 1997, the Governor of Illinois signed the Electric 

Service Customer Choice and Rate Relief Law of 1997 (the Illinois 

Law) providing for electric utility restructuring in Illinois. This legis

lation introduces competition into the supply of electric energy at 

retail in Illinois.  

Under the Illinois Law, retail direct access, which allows cus

tomers to choose their electric generation suppliers, will be phased 

in over several years. Rccess for commercial and industrial cus

tomers occurred over a period from October 1999 to December 2000, 

and access for residential customers will occur after May 1, 2002.  

Ps a requirement of the Illinois Law, in March 1999, RmerenUE 

and RmerenCIPS filed delivery service tariffs with the ICC. These 

tariffs would be used by electric customers who choose to pur

chase their power from alternate suppliers. In Rugust 1999, the ICC 

issued an order approving the delivery services tariffs, with an 

allowed rate of return on equity of 10.115%. RmerenUE and 

RmerenCIPS filed a joint petition for rehearing of that order request

ing the ICC to alter its conclusions on a number of Issues. In 

January 2000. the ICC issued an order resolving the issues set for 

rehearing. In December 2000, RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS filed 

revised Illinois delivery services tariffs with the ICC. The purpose of 

the filing was to update financial information that was used to 

establish the initial rates and to propose new rates. Rdditionally, 

the filing establishes tariffs for residential customers who may 

choose to purchase their power from alternate suppliers beginning 

in May 2002. These tariffs are subject to ICC approval. The 

Company expects that the ICC will issue its decision with respect 

to the tariffs in early 2002.  

The Illinois Law included a 5% residential electric rate decrease 

for the Company's Illinois electric customers, effective Pugust 1, 

1998. This rate decrease reduced electric revenues approximately 

$8 million in 1999. Under the Illinois Law, the Company was sub

ject to an additional 5% residential electric rate decrease In 2000 

and is subject to an additional 5% residential electric rate decrease 

in 2002, to the extent its rates exceed the Midwest utility average 

at that time. In 2000, the Company's Illinois electric rates were 

below the Midwest utility average.

Rs a result of the Illinois Law, RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS filed 

proposals with the ICC to eliminate their electric fuel adjustment 

clauses for Illinois retail customers, thereby including historical lev

els of fuel costs in base rates. The ICC approved RmerenUE's and 

AmerenCIPS' filings in early 1998.  

The Illinois Law also contains a provision requiring that one-half 

of excess earnings from the Illinois jurisdiction for the years 1998 

through 20014 be refunded to Rmeren's Illinois customers. Excess 

earnings are defined as the portion of the two-year average annual 

rate of return on common equity in excess of 1.5% of the two-year 

average of an Index, as defined In the Illinois Law. The Index is 

defined as the sum of the average for the twelve months ended 

September 30 of the average monthly yields of the 30-year U.S.  

Treasury bonds, plus prescribed percentages ranging from L4% to 

7%. Filings must be made with the ICC on, or before, March 31 of 

each year 2000 through 2005. The Company did not record any 

estimated refunds to Illinois customers in 2000.  

In conjunction with another provision of the Illinois Law, on May 

1, 2000, following the receipt of all required state and federal regu

latory approvals, PmerenCIPS transferred its electric generating 

assets and liabilities, at historical net book value, to Generating 

Company, in exchange for a promissory note from Generating 

Company in the principal amount of approximately $552 million and 

Generating Company common stock (the Transfer). In addition, on 

June 30, 2000, Generating Company borrowed $50 million from 

Rmeren to assist with the future development of combustion turbine 

generating facilities and to meet working capital needs. The prom

issory notes bear interest at 7% and each have a term of five years 

payable based on a 10-year amortization. The transferred assets 

represent a generating capacity of approximately 2,900 megawatts.  

Rpproximately L45% of PmerenCIPS' employees were transferred to 

Generating Company as part of the transaction.  

In conjunction with the Transfer, an electric power supply agree

ment was entered into between Generating Company and Its newly 

created nonregulated affiliate, PmerenEnergy Marketing Company 

(Marketing Company), also a wholly owned subsidiary of 

PmerenEnergy Resources Company. Under this agreement, 

Marketing Company is entitled to purchase all of the Generating 

Company's energy and capacity. This agreement may not be termi

nated until at least December 31, 20011. In addition, Marketing 

Company entered into an electric power supply agreement with 

RmerenCIPS to supply it sufficient energy and capacity to meet its 

obligations as a public utility through December 31, 20011. This 

agreement expires December 31, 20014. Power will continue to be 

jointly dispatched between RmerenUE and Generating Company.  

The creation of the new subsidiaries and the transfer of 

PmerenCIPS' generating assets and liabilities had no effect on the 

financial statements of Ameren as of the date of transfer.  

Other provisions of the Illinois Law Include (1) potential recovery 

of a portion of strandable costs, which represent costs which 

would not be recoverable in a restructured environment, through a 

transition charge collected from customers who choose another
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electric supplier; [2) a mechanism to securitize certain future rev
enues; and 13) a provision relieving the Company of the requirement 

to file electric rate cases or alternative regulatory plans in Illinois, 
following the consummation of the Merger to reflect the effects of 

net merger savings.  

In Rugust 1999, the Company filed a transmission system rate 

case with the FERC. This filing was primarily designed to imple

ment rates, terms and conditions for transmission service for 
wholesale customers and those retail customers in Illinois who 

choose other suppliers as allowed under the Illinois Law. In 

January 2000, the Company and other parties to the rate case 

entered into a settlement agreement resolving all issues pending 
before the FERC. In May 2000, the FERC approved the settlement 
and allowed the settlement rates to become effective as of the first 

quarter of 2000.  

The provisions of the Illinois Law could also result in lower rev
enues, reduced profit margins and increased costs of capital and 

operations expense. At this time, the Company is unable to deter
mine the impact of the Illinois Law on the Company's future finan
cial condition, results of operations or liquidity.  

In September 2000, RmerenUE and AmerenCIPS filed a request 
with the ICC seeking authorization to transfer RmerenUE's Illinois

based electric and natural gas businesses and its Illinois-based 
distribution and transmission assets and personnel to AmerenCIPS.  

The distribution and transmission assets and related liabilities are 
proposed to be transferred from RmerenUE to RmerenCIPS at histor
ical net book value, estimated to be approximately $102 million at 
December 31, 2000. In October 2000, AmerenUE filed with the 
MoPSC, and in December 2000, Rmeren filed with the SEC for 
approval of this transfer. The transfer is also subject to approval by 

the FERC. The ICC issued an order in December 2000 approving 

the request as it relates to AmerenUE's electric business. The pro

posed transfer of RmerenUE's gas business is pending before the 
ICC in a separate proceeding. The transfer is not expected to have 
a material effect on the financial statements of Rmeren as of the 

date of transfer.  

Missouri Electric Restructuring 

In Missouri, where approximately 70% of the Company's retail 
electric revenues are derived, restructuring bills were introduced by 
the Missouri legislature in 1999 and 2000. The Company is unable 

to predict the timing or ultimate outcome of electric utility restruc

turing in the state of Missouri or the impact of potential electric 
industry restructuring matters on the Company's future financial 

condition, results of operations or liquidity. The potential negative 
consequences of electric industry restructuring could be significant 

and include the impairment and writedown of certain assets, 

including generation-related plant and net regulatory assets, lower 

revenues, reduced profit margins and increased costs of capital and 
operations expense. Rt December 31, 2000, the Company's net 
investment in generation facilities related to its Missouri jurisdiction 

approximated $2.7 billion and was included in electric plant

in-service on the Company's balance sheet. In addition, at 
December 31, 2000, the Company's Missouri net generation-related 
regulatory assets approximated $L1442 million.  

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 

In accordance with SFRS No. 71, "Rccounting for the Effects of 
Certain Types of Regulation," the Company has deferred certain 
costs pursuant to actions of its regulators, and is currently recover
ing such costs in electric rates charged to customers.  

Rt December 31, the Company had recorded the following regu
latory assets and regulatory liability:

In Millions 

Regulatory Assets: 

Income taxes 

Callaway costs 

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt 
Merger costs 

Other 

Regulatory Assets 

Regulatory Liability: 

Income taxes 

Regulatory Liability

2000 1999 

$600 $623 

88 92 

31 31 

17 27 

23 25 

$759 $799 

$18LI $188 

$18L1 $188

Income taxes: See Note 9 - Income Taxes.  
Callaway costs: Represents Callaway Nuclear Plant operations 

and maintenance expenses, property taxes and carrying costs 

incurred between the plant in-service date and the date the plant 
was reflected in rates. These costs are being amortized over the 
remaining life of the plant (through 202111.  

Unamortized loss on reacquired debt: Represents losses related 
to refunded debt. These amounts are being amortized over the 
lives of the related new debt issues or the remaining lives of the 

old debt issues if no new debt was issued.  

Merger costs: Represents the portion of merger-related expenses 
applicable to the Missouri retail jurisdiction. These costs are 

being amortized within 10 years, based on a MoPSC order.  

The Company continually assesses the recoverability of its 
regulatory assets. Under current accounting standards, regulatory 

assets are written off to earnings when it is no longer probable 

that such amounts will be recovered through future revenues.  

However, as noted in the above paragraphs, electric industry 

restructuring legislation may impact the recoverability of regulatory 

assets in the future.  

NOTE 3 - TARGETED SEPARATION PLAN 

In July 1998, the Company offered separation packages to 
employees whose positions were eliminated through a targeted 
separation plan ITSPI. During the third Quarter of 1998, a nonre
curring, pretax charge of $25 million was recorded, reducing earn

ings $15 million, or 11 cents per share. This represented costs 
incurred to implement the TSR
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NOTE 4 - CONCENTRATION OF RISK 

Market Risk 

The Company engages in price risk management activities 

related to electricity and fuel. In addition to buying and selling 

these commodities, the Company uses derivative financial instru

ments to manage market risks and to reduce exposure resulting 

from fluctuations in interest rates and the prices of electricity and 

fuel. Hedging instruments used include futures, forward contracts 

and options. The use of these types of contracts allows the 

Company to manage and hedge its contractual commitments and 

reduce exposure related to the volatility of commodity market 

prices.  

Credit Risk 

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognized if 

counterparties fail to perform as contracted. New York Mercantile 

Exchange (NYMEX) traded futures contracts are supported by the 

financial and credit quality of the clearing members of the NYMEX 

and have nominal credit risk. On all other transactions, the 

Company is exposed to credit risk In the event of nonperformance 

by the counterparties in the transaction.  

The Company's financial instruments subject to credit risk con

sist primarily of trade accounts receivables and forward contracts.  

The risk associated with trade receivables is mitigated by the 

large number of customers in a broad range of industry groups 

comprising the Company's customer base. No customer repre

sents greater than 10% of the Company's accounts receivable.  

The Company's revenues are primarily derived from sales of elec

tricity and natural gas to customers in Missouri and Illinois. For 

each counterparty in forward contracts, the Company analyzes the 

counterparty's financial condition prior to entering into an agree

ment, establishes credit limits and monitors the appropriateness 

of these limits on an ongoing basis through a credit risk manage

ment program.  

NOTE 5 - NUCLEAR FUEL LEASE 
The Company has a lease agreement that provides for the 

financing of nuclear fuel. Pt December 31, 2000, the maximum 

amount that could be financed under the agreement was $120 

million. Pursuant to the terms of the lease, the Company has 

assigned to the lessor certain contracts for purchase of nuclear 

fuel. The lessor obtains, through the Issuance of commercial 

paper or from direct loans under a committed revolving credit 

agreement from commercial banks, the necessary funds to pur

chase the fuel and make Interest payments when due.  

The Company is obligated to reimburse the lessor for all expen

ditures for nuclear fuel, interest and related costs. Obligations 

under this lease become due as the nuclear fuel is consumed at 

the Company's Callaway Nuclear Plant. The Company reimbursed 

the lessor $13 million in 2000, $16 million during 1999 and $23 

million during 1998.

The Company has capitalized the cost, including certain inter

est costs, of the leased nuclear fuel and has recorded the related 

lease obligation. Total interest charges under the lease were $8 

million In 2000 and $5 million in 1999 and 1998. Interest charges 

for these years were based on average interest rates of approxi

mately 7%. Interest charges of $6 million were capitalized in 

2000, and $14 million and $3 million, respectively, were capital

ized In 1999 and 1998.  

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN 

AND PREFERRED STOCK OF SUBSIDIARIES 

In October 1996, the Company's Board of Directors approved a 

share purchase rights plan designed to assure shareholders of fair 

and equal treatment in the event of a proposed takeover. The 

rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires 15% or 

more of Rmeren's common stock or announces a tender offer, the 

consummation of which would result in ownership by a person or 

group of 15% or more of the common stock. Each right will entitle 

the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a newly issued pre

ferred stock at an exercise price of $180. If a person or group 

acquires 15% or more of Rmeren's outstanding common stock, 

each right will entitle its holder (other than such person or mem

bers of such group) to purchase, at the right's then-current exer

cise price, a number of Ameren's common shares having a market 

value of twice such price. In addition, If Ameren is acquired in a 

merger or other business combination transaction after a person 

or group has acquired 15% or more of the Company's outstanding 

common stock, each right will entitle Its holder to purchase, at the 

right's then-current exercise price, a number of the acquiring com

pany's common shares having a market value of twice such price.  

The acquiring person or group will not be entitled to exercise 

these rights. The SEC approved the plan under PUHCR in 

December 1998. The rights were issued as a dividend payable 

January 8, 1999, to shareholders of record on that date; these 

rights expire in 2008. One right will accompany each new share 

of Ameren common stock issued prior to such expiration date.  

Pt December 31, 2000 and 1999, AmerenUE and RmerenCIPS 

had 25 million shares and L4.6 million shares respectively, of 

authorized preferred stock.  

Outstanding preferred stock is entitled to cumulative dividends 

and is redeemable at the prices shown in the following table: 

Redemption Price December 31, 
Dollars In Mi//ions 1per share) 2000 1999

Preferred Stock Outstanding Not 
Subject to Mandatory Redemption: 

Without par value and stated 

value of $100 per share 

$7.64 Series -330,000 shares $103.82-note(al 

$5.50 Series P -14,000 shares 110.00 
$4.75 Series -20,000 shares 102.176 

$'4.56 Series -200,000 shares 102.L17

$ 33 

2 

20

$ 33 

2 

20
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Redemption Price 
(per share]Dollars In Millions

Preferred Stock Outstanding Not Subject 

to Mandatory Redemption (Continued]: 

$14.50 Series -213.S95 shares 110.00-notelb) 

$14.30 Series -140,000 shares 105.00 

$14.00 Series -150,000 shares 105.625 

$3.70 Series -140,000 shares 1014.7S 

$3.80 Series -130,000 shares 110.00 

With par value of $100 per share 

14.00% Series -150,000 shares 101.00 

14.25% Series -50,000 shares 102.00 

14.90% Series 75,000 shares 102.00 

14.92% Series -50,000 shares 103.80 

5.16% Series -SO,000 shares 102.00 

1993 Ruction -300,000 shares 100.00-note (c) 

6.52S% Series -125,000 shares 100.00 

Without par value and stated 

value of $25 per share 

$1.735 Series -1,657,500 shares 25.00 

Total Preferred Stock Outstanding 

Not Subject to Mandatory Redemption

(a] fb) 

[ci

Beginning February 15, 2003, eventually declining to $100 
In the event of voluntary liquidation, $105.50.  
Dividend rates, and the periods during which such rates aj 
depending on the Company's selection of certain defined c 
lengths. The average dividend rate during 2000 was q.85,

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

Short-term borrowings of the Company consist of c 

paper (maturities generally within 1-148 days) and bank 

Rt December 31, 2000 and 1999, $203 million and $14

respectively, of short-term borrowings were outstandi 

weighted average interest rates on borrowings outstar 

December 31, 2000 and 1999, were 6.7% and 6.3%, re 

Rt December 31, 2000, the Company had committe 

of credit, aggregating $176 million (all of which was ur 

available at such date) which make available interim fi 

various rates of interest based on LIBOR, the bank cer 

deposit rate, or other options. These lines of credit ar 

annually at various dates throughout the year.  
The Company also has bank credit agreements tot 

million, expiring at various dates between 2001 and 2( 

support a portion of the Company's commercial paper 

Rt December 31, 2000, all was unused and $296 miii 

borrowing was available.  

The Company has money pool agreements with ar 

subsidiaries to coordinate and provide for certain short 

and working capital requirements. Separate money pi 

tained between regulated and nonregulated businesse 

calculated at varying rates of interest depending on thi 

of internal and external funds in the money pools. Thi 
the related interest represent intercompany balances, 

eliminated at the Rmeren Corporation consolidated lev

December 31, 
2000 1ggg 

21 21 
4 14 

is Is 
L4 L 

13 13 

is 18 

5 S 
8 8 

S S 

S S 

30 30 

12 12 

-42 142

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

In Millions 

First Mortgage Bonds - note (a) 
7.140% Series paid in 2000 
8.33% Series due 2002 
6 Y/8% Series Z due 2003 

7.65% Series due 2003 
6 Y,% Series due 20014 
7 3/4% Series due 20014 
7 1,% Series X due 2007 
5 X/% Series due 2008 

7.61% 1997 Series due 2017 
8 3/4% Series due 2021 
8 Y4% Series due 2022 
8% Series due 2022 
7.15% Series due 2023 
7% Series due 20214 
6.125% Series due 2028 
5.45% Series due 2028 - note (b) 
Other 5.375% - 7.05% due 2001 through 2008

$235 $235 Environmental Improvement/Pollution Control 
1985 Series R paid in 2000 

per share. 1985 Series B paid in 2000 

2py, vary 1990 Series B paid in 2000 

ividend period 1991 Series due 2020 - note [c) 
'. 1992 Series due 2022 - note (c) 

1993 Series R 64/8% due 2028 
1993 Series C-i due 2026 - note (c) 

:ommercial 1998 Series R due 2033 - note (c) 

loans. 1998 Series 8 due 2033 - note (c) 

(8 million, 1998 Series C due 2033 - note (c) 

rg. The 2000 Series R due 2014 - note (c] 

nding at 2000 Series R due 2035 - note (c) 

spectively. 2000 Series B due 2038 - note (c) 

d bank lines 2000 Series C due 2035 - note (ci 

insed and Other 14.13% - 7.60% due 20114 through 2028 

inancing at 

tificate of Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures 

e renewable 7.69% Series R due 2036 - note (d) 
Unsecured Loans 

aling $1463 Commercial paper - note (e) 

J02, that 1991 Senior Medium Term Notes 
8.60% due through 2005 

program. 19914 Senior Medium Term Notes 

ion of such 6.61% due through 2005 

2000 Senior Notes 7.61% due 20014 
nd among its 2000 Senior Notes Series 8 

t-term cash 7 3/,% due 2005 - note IfM 
ools are main- 2000 Senior Notes Series B 

s. Interest is 8.35% due 2010 - note (g) 

e composition 

s debt and Nuclear Fuel Lease 
Unamortized Discount and Premium on Debt which are 
Maturities Due Within One Year 
Total Long-Term Debt

December 31, 
2000 1999 

$ -$ 60 
75 75 
140 140 

100 100 
188 188 
65 88 
50 50 

1148 1148 
140 140 

125 125 
104 1014 
85 85 
75 75 

100 100 
60 60 
144 1414 

123 1S8 
.1,442 1,537

Revenue 

L43 
147 

3S 
35 
60 
50 
5o 
51 

614 
63 
60 
60 

618

Bonds 
70 
57 
32 
143 
147 
35 
3S 
60 
5o 
s0 

80 
559

66 66 

19 182 

33 141

39 
140

146

225 

200 

556 239 
1114 116 

(7) (8) 
(14141 1611 

$27148 $214148
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(a) Pt December 31, 2000, a majority of the property and plant was mort
gaged under, and subject to liens of, the respective indentures pursuant 
to which the bonds were Issued.  

[bl Environmental Improvement Series 
Ic) Interest rates, and the periods during which such rates apply, vary 

depending on the Company's selection of certain defined rate modes.  
The average interest rates for the year 2000 are as follows: 

1991 Series 4.39% 
1992 Series 1431% 
1993 Series 14.19% 
1998 Series P 14.31% 
1998 Series B 4.28% 
1998 Series C '4.33% 
2000 Series P, 201'4 14.3'4% 
2000 Series P, 2035 1457% 
2000 Series B 14.57% 
2000 Series C 14.56% 

(d] During the terms of the debentures, the Company may, under certain 
circumstances, defer the payment of interest for up to five years.  

[a) R bank credit agreement, due 2002, permits PmerenUE to borrow or 
to support commercial paper borrowings up to $300 million. Interest 
rates will vary depending on market conditions. Pt December 31, 2000, 
$19 million of such borrowings were outstanding.  

IfM Interest is payable semiannually in arrears on May I and November I 
of each year, commencing May 1, 2001. Principal will be payable on 
November 1, 2005.  

(g) Interest is payable semiannually in arrears on May I and November I 
of each year, commencing May 1, 2001. Principal will be payable on 
November I 2010.  

Maturities of long-term debt through 2005 are as follows:

in Milions 

2001 
2002 
2003 
20011 
2005

Principal Pmount 

$1141 
1112 
160 
328 
258

Amounts for years subsequent to 2001 do not include nuclear 

fuel lease payments since the amounts of such payments are not 

currently determinable.  

NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES 

Total income tax expense for 2000 resulted in an effective tax 

rate of 39% on earnings before income taxes (39% in 1999 and 140% 

in 1998).  

Principal reasons such rates differ from the statutory federal rate: 

2000 1999 1998

Statutory federal income tax rate: 
Increases (Decreases) from: 

Depreciation differences 
State tax 
Other 

Effective income tax Tate 

Income tax expense components: 
In Millions 

Taxes cuTrently payable 
(principally federal]: 

Included in operating expenses 
Included in other income 

Miscellaneous, net

35% 35% 35%

Income tax expense components (continued): 
In Millions 201 

Deferred taxes (principally federal]: 

Included in operating expenses
Depreciation differences 
Other 

Included in other Income 

Other 

Deferred investment tax credits, 
amortization: 

Included in operating expenses 

Total income tax expense $29

70 1999 1998

(5) 3 
7 (231

(10) 
(17)

- (2) 2 
2 122) (25) 

8) (8) (8) 

'9 $254 $2654

In accordance with SF8S 109, "Rccounting for Income Taxes," 

a regulatory asset, representing the probable recovery from cus

tomers of future income taxes, which is expected to occur when 

temporary differences reverse, was recorded along with a corre

sponding deferred tax liability. Also, a regulatory liability, recogniz

ing the lower expected revenue resulting from reduced income 

taxes associated with amortizing accumulated deferred Investment 

tax credits, was recorded. Investment tax credits have been 

deferred and will continue to be credited to Income over the lives 

of the related property.  

The Company adjusts its deferred tax liabilities for changes 

enacted In tax laws or rates. Recognizing that regulators will 

probably reduce future revenues for deferred tax liabilities initially 

recorded at rates in excess of the current statutory rate, reductions 

in the deferred tax liability were credited to the regulatory liability.  

Temporary differences gave rise to the following deferred tax 

assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31:

In Millions 

Accumulated deferred income taxes: 
Depreciation 
Regulatory assets, net 
Capitalized taxes and expenses 
Deferred benefit costs 
Other 

Total net accumulated deferred 
income tax liabilities

2000 1999

$1,.0113 
1117 
181 

(73) 
22

$1,038 
1433 
130 
(58) 

21

$1,590 $1,565

2 1 1 NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
3 14 41 The Company has defined benefit retirement plans covering sub
(1) 11) - stantlally all employees of ArmerenUE, RmerenCIPS, and Ameren 

39% 39% 110% Services Company and certain employees of AmerenEnergy 
Resources Company and its subsidiaries. Benefits are based 
on the employees' years of service and compensation. The 2000 1999 1998 
Company's plans are funded in compliance with income tax regula
tions and federal funding requirements.  

$307 $287 $303 On January 1, 1999, the AmerenUE and the AmerenCIPS pension 
plans combined to form the Ameren Retirement Plans. The 

(2) (3) 16) ArmerenUE and AmerenCIPS pension plans' information for 1998 Is 

305 2811 297 presented separately. Following Is the pension plan information 
related to Ameren's plans as of December 31.
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Pension costs for 2000 and 1999 were $3 million and $2Lr mil

lion, respectively, of which 21% and 18%, respectively, were charged 

to construction accounts.  

Funded Status of Ameren's Pension Plans: 
In Millions 2000 1999 

Change in benefit obligation 
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year $1,257 $1,321 

Service cost 30 33 
Interest cost 96 91 
Plan amendments 28 

Rctuarial (gain)/loss 38 195) 
Benefits paid 1891 (93) 

Net benefit obligation at end of year 1.362 1,257 

Change in plan assets* 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,q27 1,372 

Rctual return on plan assets 20 lL46 
Employer contributions 1 2 
Benefits paid 1891 (93) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1,359 1q27 

Funded status - deficiency/l(excess) 3 1170) 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain 160 310 
Unrecognized prior service cost 1821 (621 
Unrecognized net transition asset 6 7 
Accrued pension cost at December 31 $ 87 $ 85 

* Plan assets consist principally of common stocks and fixed income securities.  

Components of Ameren's 

Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost: 
In Millions 2000 1999 

Service cost $ 30 $ 33 
Interest cost 98 91 
Expected return on plan assets 11101 iOqI0 
Rmortization of: 

Transition asset (I) (1) 
Prior service cost 7 7 
Rctuarial gain (211 (2) 

Net periodic benefit cost $ 3 $ 2L4 

Weighted-average Assumptions for 

Actuarial Present Value of Projected 

Benefit Obligations: 

2000 1999 

Discount rate at measurement date 7.50% 7.75% 
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 
Increase in future compensation L.50% 4.75% 

RmerenUE's plans cover substantially all employees of RmerenUE 

as well as certain employees of Rmeren Services Company.  

Pension costs for RmerenUE's plans for the year 1998 were $28 

million, of which approximately 19% were charged to construction 

accounts.

Components of AmerenUE's 
Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost: 
In Millions 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rmortization of: 

Transition asset 
Prior service cost 
Rctuarial gain 

Special termination benefit charge 
Net periodic benefit cost

1998 

$ 24 
70 
(751 

1I) 
5 

(3) 
7 

$ 28

AmerenCIPS' plans cover substantially all employees of 

RmerenCIPS as well as certain employees of Rmeren Services 

Company. Pension costs for RmerenCIPS' plans for the year 

1998 were $9 million, of which approximately 19% were charged 

to construction accounts.

Components of AmerenCiPS' 
Net Periodic Pension Benefit Cost: 
In Millions 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rmortization of prior service cost 
Special termination benefit charge 
Net periodic benefit cost

1998 

$8 
17 

(221 

5 
$ 9

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company provides 

certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees.  

The Company accrues the expected postretirement benefit costs 

during employees' years of service.  

On January 1, 2000, the RmerenUE and the RmerenCIPS postre

tirement benefit plans combined to form the Rmeren Plans. The 

Rmeren Plans cover substantially all employees of RmerenUE, 

RmerenCIPS, and Ameren Services Company and certain employ

ees of RmerenEnergy Resources Company and its subsidiaries.  

The RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS postretirement plans' information 

for 1999 and 1998 is presented separately. Following is the 

postretirement plan information related to Rmeren's plans as of 

December 31, 2000.  

Ameren's funding policy is to annually fund the Voluntary 

Employee Beneficiary Rssociation trusts IVEBR) with the lesser of 

the net periodic cost or the amount deductible for federal income 

tax purposes. Postretirement benefit costs were $58 million for 

2000, of which approximately 17% were charged to construction 

accounts. Rmeren's transition obligation at December 31, 2000, 

is being amortized over the next 12 years.  

The MoPSC and the ICC allow the recovery of postretirement 

benefit costs in rates to the extent that such costs are funded.
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Funded Status of Ameren's 
Postretirement Benefit Plans: 
In Millions 

Change in benefit obligation 
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Plan amendments 
Rctuarial loss 
Benefits paid 

Net benefit obligation at end of year 

Change in plan assets* 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 

Rctual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Funded status - deficiency 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net transition obligation 
Postretirement benefit liability at December 31 
* Plan assets consist principally of common stocks, bonds, 

and money market instruments.

AmerenUE's plans cover substantially all employees of 

RmerenUE as well as certain employees of Ameren Services 

2000 Company. Postretirement benefit costs were $116 million for 1999 

and $143 million In 1998, of which approximately 18% in 1999 and 

$1-qp 17% in 1998 were charged to construction accounts.

20 
143 

(261 
911 
(31-0 

569 

269 
(q) 
59 

(314) 
290 

299 
(1L) 

2 

(1961 
$ 91

Components of Ameren's Net Periodic 
Postretirement Benefit Cost: 
In Millions 201

$ iService cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 

Amortization of: 
Transition obligation 
Actuarial gain 

Net periodic benefit cost

Assumptions for the 
Obligation Measurements: 

Discount rate at measurement date 
Expected return on plan assets 
Medical cost trend rate - initial 

- ultimate 

Ultimate medical cost trend rate expected in year

Funded Status of AmerenUE's 
Postretirement Benefit Plans: 
In Millions

Change in benefit obligation 
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Service cost 

Interest cost 
Actuarial gain 

Benefits paid 
Net benefit obligation at end of year 

Change in plan assets* 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 

Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 

Benefits paid 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Funded status - deficiency 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain 

Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net transition obligation 
Postretirement benefit liability at December 31

1999

$360 
15 

2S 
1201 
126) 

3514 

110 
11 

146 
(261 
134 

220 
29 

(3) 
(162) 

$ 811

70O * Plan assets consist principally of common stocks, bonds, 

9 and money market Instruments.

L43 

(18) 

16 

(2) 
$ 58 

2000 

7.50% 
6.50% 

5.0% 
2000

A 1% increase In the medical cost trend rate is estimated to 

Increase the net periodic cost and the accumulated postretirement 

benefit obligation approximately $7 million and $51 million, respec

tively. A 1% decrease In the medical cost trend rate is estimated 

to decrease the net periodic cost and the accumulated postretire

ment benefit obligation approximately $5 million and $116 million, 

respectively.

Components of AmerenUE's Net 
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost: 
In Millions 1999 1998 

Service cost $115 $ 1L 
Interest cost 25 241 
Expected return on plan assets (6) (S) 
Rmortization of: 

Transition obligation 12 12 
Rctuarial gain - (21 

Net periodic benefit cost $46 $ 43 

Assumptions for the 
Obligation Measurements: 

1999

Discount rate at measurement date 
Expected return on plan assets 

Medical cost trend rate - initial 
- ultimate 

Ultimate medical cost trend rate expected in year

7.75% 
8.50% 

5.25% 
2000

RmerenCIPS' plans cover substantially all employees of 

RmerenCIPS as well as certain employees of Rmeren Services 

Company. Postretirement benefit costs were $3 million for 1999 

and $6 million for 1998, of which approximately 10% and 20% were 

charged to construction accounts, respectively.



page 40 AMEREN CORPORATION ZOO0 ANNUAL REPORT

Funded Status of AmerenCiPS' 
Postretirement Benefit Plans: 
In Millions 

Change in benefit obligation 
Net benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Rctuarial gain 
Benefits paid 

Net benefit obligation at end of year 

Change in plan assets* 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 

Rctual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 

Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

Funded status - deficiency 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain 

Unrecognized net transition obligation 
Postretirement benefit liability at December 31 

* Plan assets consist principally of common stocks, bonds, 

and money market instruments.

NOTE 11 - STOCK OPTION PLANS 

The Company has a long-term incentive plan (the Plan) for eligible 
1999 employees, which provides for the grant of options, performance 

awards, restricted stock, dividend equivalents and stock apprecia

$152 tion rights. Under the terms of the Plan, options may be granted at 
3 a price not less than the fair market value of the common shares at 
9 the date of grant. Granted options vest over a period of five years, 

(22) beginning at the date of grant, and provide for acceleration of exer
I{4) cisability of the options upon the occurrence of certain events, 

138 including retirement. Outstanding options expire on various dates 

through 2010. Under the Plan, subject to adjustment as provided in 

128 the Plan, four million shares have been authorized to be issued or 

10 delivered under the Company's Plan. In accordance with RPB 25, 
I no compensation cost has been recognized for the Company's stock 

('4) compensation plans. The Company has adopted the disclosure-only 
135 method of fair value data under SFRS 123, "Rccounting for Stock

3 Based Compensation." If the fair value-based accounting method 

7S under this statement had been used to account for stock-based 

1711 compensation cost, the effects on 2000, 1999, and 1998 net income 
$ 7 and earnings per share would have been immaterial.  

The following table summarizes stock option activity during 

2000, 1999 and 1998:

Components of AmerenCIPS' Net 
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost: 
In Millions 1999 1998 

Service cost $ 3 $ 3 
Interest cost 9 10 
Expected return on plan assets (9) (8)
Rmortization of: 

Transition obligation 

Rctuarial gain 
Net periodic benefit cost

6 5 

56) [(-) 
$3 $6

Assumptions for the 
Obligation Measurements: 

Discount rate at measurement date 
Expected return on plan assets 
Medical cost trend rate - initial 

- ultimate 
Ultimate medical cost trend rate expected in year

1999 

7.75% 
8.50% 

5.25% 
2000

Shares

Outstanding at beginning of year 

Granted 

Exercised 

Cancelled or expired 

Outstanding at end of year

2000 

Weighted 

Pverage 
Exercise 

Price

1,83L[,108 $38.22 

957,100 31.00 

295,693 38.L41 

57,183 37.88 

2,438,332 $35.37

Exercisable at end of year 312.663 $39.58 

199g 1998 

Weighted Weighted 
Pverage Pverage 

Exercise Exercise 
Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at 
beginning of year 

Granted 
Exercised 
Cancelled or expired 
Outstanding at 

end of year 
Exercisable at 

end of year

1,095,180 
758,100 

11,162 
18,010

$39.41 
36.63 
37.20 
412.45

L496,070 

700,600 

72,390 
29,100

$39.2L4 

39.25 
36.81 
39.28

1,83LI,108 $38.22 1,095,180 $39.'41 

391,L456 $39.06 173,653 $39.91
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Rdditional information about stock options outstanding at 

December 31, 2000:

$31.00 

35.50 

35.875 

36.625 

38.50 

39.25 

39.8125 

113.00

9145,1 00 
800 

1111,1100 

689,100 

125,565 

521,313 

5.300 

106,7511

Weighted Average 
Life (Years) 

9.1 
L.5 

11.2 

8.1 

6.0 

7.2 

7.5 
4.6

Exercisable Shares 

800 
1414,40oo 

3,800 
57,455 

122,601 

1,325 

82,282

The fair values of stock options were estimated using a binomial 

option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

6.81% 
5441% 

5.63% 

5.01% 
5.70% 

5.87%

Option Expected Expected 
Term Volatility Dividend Yield

10 years 

10 years 

10 years 

10 years 
10 years 

10 years

17.39% 
18.80% 

17.58% 

17.63% 

13.17% 

13.67%

6.61% 
6.51% 

6.55% 

6.55% 

6.53% 

6.32%

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Company is engaged in a capital program under which 

expenditures averaging approximately $676 million, including RFC 

and capitalized interest, are anticipated during each of the next five 

years. This estimate includes capital expenditures for the purchase 

of new combustion turbine generating facilities and for the replace

ment of four steam generators at its Callaway Nuclear Plant, as well 

as expenditures that will be incurred by the Company to meet new 

air quality standards for ozone and particulate matter, as discussed 

later in this Note.  

The Company has committed to purchase combustion turbine 

generator equipment (CTs), which will add more than 2,300 

megawatts to its net peaking capacity and are expected to cost 

approximately $1.1 billion. CTs with a total capacity of approximately 

850 megawatts are planned to be installed in 2001, 515 megawatts 

in 2002, and 325 megawatts each in 2003, 20011 and 2005. The 

new capacity is expected to be operated by Generating Company 

(see Note 2 - Regulatory Matters for further information).  

The Company has commitments for the purchase of coal under 

long-term contracts. Coal contract commitments, including trans

portation costs, for 2001 through 2005 are estimated to total $1.6 bil

lion. Total coal purchases, including transportation costs, for 2000, 

1999 and 1998 were $507 million, $603 million and $567 million, 

respectively. The Company also has existing contracts with pipeline 

and natural gas suppliers to provide, transport and store natural gas 

for distribution and electric generation. Gas-related contract cost 

commitments for 2001 through 2005 are estimated to total $207 mil

lion. Total delivered natural gas costs were $209 million for 2000,

Exercise Price Outstanding Shares

In Millions 

Public Liability: 

Rmerican Nuclear Insurers 

Pool Participation 

Nuclear Worker Liability: 

Rmerican Nuclear Insurers 

Property Damage: 

Nuclear Electric Insurance Ltd.  

Replacement Power: 

Nuclear Electric Insurance Ltd.

Maximum 
Assessments 

Maximum for Single 

Coverages Incidents

$ 200 
9,338 

$9,538 Ib) 

$ 200 (c) 

$2,750 (d)

88 Ia) 
$88 

$3 

$ 11

$ 490 (e) $ 2

(a) Retrospective premium under the Price-Anderson liability provisions of the 
Atomic Energy Rct of g954, as amended [Price-Rnderson). Sub/ect to 

retrospective assessment with respect to loss from an incident at any U.S.  

reactor, payable at $10 million per year Price-Rnderson expires in 2002.  

(bI Limit of liability for each incident under Price-Anderson.  

1c) Industry limit for potential liability from workers claiming exposure to the 

hazard of nuclear radiation.  

fdJ Includes premature decommissioning costs.  

tel Weekly indemnity of $3.5 million, for 52 weeks which commences 

after the first 12 weeks of an outage, plus $2.8 million per week for 

110 weeks thereafter.

$131 million for 1999, and $119 million for 1998. The Company's 

nuclear fuel commitments for 2001 through 2005, including uranium 

concentrates, conversion, enrichment and fabrication, are expected 

to total $111 million, and are expected to be substantially financed 

under the nuclear fuel lease. Nuclear fuel expenditures were $22 

million in each of the years 2000 and 1999, and $20 million for 

1998. Rdditionally, the Company has long-term contracts with other 

utilities to purchase electrc capacity. These commitments for 2001 

through 2005 are estimated to total $161 million. Ouring 2000, 1999 

and 1998, electric capacity purchases were $140 million, $41-1 million 

and $38 million, respectively.  

In the fourth quarter of 1999, RmerenCIPS and two of its coal 

suppliers executed agreements to terminate their existing coal 

supply contracts, effective December 31, 1999. Under these agree

ments, RmerenCIPS has made termination payments to the suppli

ers totaling approximately $52 million. These termination payments 

were recorded as a nonrecurring charge in the fourth quarter of 1999, 

equivalent to $31 million, after income taxes, or 23 cents per share.  

Total pretax fuel cost savings from these termination agreements are 

estimated to be $183 million (or $131 million net of the termination 

payments) through 2010, which is the maximum period that would 

have remained on any of the terminated coal supply contracts. Total 

estimated pretax fuel cost savings of $27 million were realized in 

2000.  

The Company's insurance coverage for Callaway Nuclear Plant at 

December 31, 2000, was as follows: 

Type and Source of Coverage

Grant Risk-free 

Date Interest Rate

2111100 

2/12/99 

6/16/98 

L4/28/98 

2/10/97 

2/7/96
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Price-Rnderson limits the liability for claims from an incident 
involving any licensed U.S. nuclear facility. The limit is based on the 

number of licensed reactors and is adiusted at least every five years 
based on the Consumer Price Index. Utilities owning a nuclear reac
tor cover this exposure through a combination of private insurance 
and mandatory participation in a financial protection pool, as estab

lished by Price-Rnderson.  

If losses from a nuclear incident at Callaway exceed the limits 
of, or are not subject to, insurance, or if coverage is not available, 
the Company will self-insure the risk. Rithough the Company has 
no reason to anticipate a serious nuclear incident, if one did occur, 
it could have a material, but indeterminable, adverse effect on the 

Company's financial position, results of operations or liquidity.  

Title IV of the Clean Rir Rct Rmendments of 1990 required the 
Company to significantly reduce total annual sulfur dioxide {S02] 
and nitrogen oxide INOx) emissions by the year 2000. By switch
ing to low-sulfur coal, early banking of emission credits and 
installing advanced NOx reduction combustion technology, the 
Company is meeting these requirements.  

In July 1997, the United States Environmental Protection Rgency 

[EPR) issued regulations revising the National Rmbient Rir Quality 
Standards for ozone and particulate matter. In May 1999, the U.S.  
Court of Rppeals for the District of Columbia remanded the regula
tions back to the EPR for review. The EPR appealed the decision to 
the U.S. Supreme Court, and all arguments and briefs have been 
filed. R decision is expected in mid-2001. New ambient standards 
may require significant additional reductions in S02 and NOx emis
sions from the Company's power plants by 2007. Rt this time, the 
Company is unable to predict the ultimate impact of these revised 

air quality standards on its future financial condition, results of 
operations or liquidity.  

In an attempt to lower ozone levels across the eastern United 
States, the EPR issued regulations in September 1998 to reduce 
NOx emissions from coal-fired boilers and other sources in 22 
states, including Missouri and Illinois (where all of the Company's 
coal-fired power plant boilers are located). The regulations were 
challenged in a U.S. District Court. In March 2000, the Court 
upheld most of the regulations. However, the Court remanded the 
state of Missouri's regulations back to the EPR, for revision. The 

Court further delayed the compliance date of the regulations until 
2004L. The regulations mandate a 75% reduction in NOx emissions 
from utility boilers in Illinois by the year 2004L. The final applicability 
of the rules as they might apply to power plant boilers in Missouri 
is still uncertain. The NOx emissions reductions already achieved 
on several of the Company's coal-fired power plants will help 
reduce the costs of compliance with these regulations. However, 

the regulations will require the installation of selective catalytic 
reduction technology on some of the Company's units, as well as 

additional controls.

Currently, the Company estimates that its additional capital 

expenditures to comply with the final NOx regulations could range 

from $250 million to $300 million over the period from 2001 to 
2005. Rssociated operations and maintenance expenditures could 
increase $10 million to $15 million annually, beginning in 2005. The 
Company is exploring alternatives to comply with these new regula
tions in order to minimize, to the extent possible, its capital costs 
and operating expenses. The Company is unable to predict the ulti
mate impact of these standards on its future financial condition, 

results of operations or liquidity.  

The Company is involved in a number of remediation actions to 
clean up hazardous waste sites as required by federal and state 
law. Such statutes require that responsible parties fund remedia
tion actions regardless of fault, legality of original disposal, or own
ership of a disposal site. RmerenUE and RmerenCIPS have been 
identified by the federal or state governments as a potentially 

responsible party IPRP) at several contaminated sites, including 
three sites that have been listed on the National Priorities List (NPLI.  

The ICC permits the recovery of remediation and litigation costs 
associated with former manufactured gas plant (MGPI sites located 
in Illinois from the Company's Illinois electric and natural gas utility 
customers through environmental adiustment clause rate riders. To 
be recoverable, such costs must be prudently and properly incurred 
and are subject to annual reconciliation review by the ICC. Through 
December 31, 2000, the total costs deferred, net of recoveries from 
insurers and through environmental adjustment clause rate riders, 

was $6 million. The Company owns or is otherwise responsible 
for ILl MGP sites in Illinois. In addition, the Company owns or is 
otherwise responsible for 10 MGP sites in Missouri and I in Iowa.  
Unlike Illinois, the Company does not have in effect in Missouri a 
rate rider mechanism which permits remediation costs associated 
with MGP sites to be recovered from utility customers, and the 
Company has no retail utility operations in Iowa.  

In June 2000, the EPR notified RmerenUE and numerous other 
companies that certain properties in Sauget, Illinois, may contain 
soil and groundwater contamination. From approximately 1926 

until 1976, RmerenUE operated a power generating facility and 
currently owns and operates electric transmission facilities in the 
area. Rt this time, the Company is unable to predict the ultimate 
impact of the Sauget site on its financial position, results of opera
tions or liquidity.  

In September 2000, the United States Department of Justice 
was granted leave by the United States District Court - Southern 
District of Illinois to add numerous additional parties, including 
RmerenUE, to a preexisting lawsuit between the government and 
Monsanto Chemical Company and others. The government seeks 
recovery of response costs under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response Compensation Liability Rct of 1980 (commonly known as 
CERCLR or Superfund), incurred in connection with an Illinois
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Superfund site. The Company believes that the final resolution of 

this lawsuit will not have a material adverse effect on its financial 

position, results of operations or liquidity.  

In addition, the Company's operations, or that of Its predecessor 

companies, Involve the use, disposal and, in appropriate circum

stances, the cleanup of substances regulated under environmental 

protection laws. The Company is unable to determine the Impact 

these actions may have on the Company's financial position, 

results of operations or liquidity.  

The International Union of Operating Engineers Local 1148 and the 

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 702 filed unfair 

labor practice charges with the National Labor Relations Board 

INLRB), relating to the legality of the 1993 lockout of both unions by 

AmerenCIPS. The NLRB Issued complaints against AmerenCIPS 

concerning Its lockout. Both unions sought, among other things, 

back pay and other benefits for the period of the lockout. Ft that 

time, the Company estimated the amount of back pay and other 

benefits for both unions to be approximately $17 million. In Rugust 

1998, a three-member panel of the NLRB reversed the May 1996 

decision of its administrative law judge and ruled in favor of 

RmerenCIPS holding that the lockout was lawful. In May 2000, the 

U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit issued a 

ruling upholding the NLRB's Rugust 1998 decision. In December 

2000, the U.S. Supreme Court denied the unions' request to review 

the U.S. Court of Appeals ruling. With this action by the U.S.  

Supreme Court, the unions have no further appeals available and 

the lawfulness of AmerenCIPS' 1993 lockout Is upheld.  

Certain employees of the Company are represented by the 

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers and the International 

Union of Operating Engineers. These employees comprise approxi

mately 66% of the Company's workforce. New contracts with col

lective bargaining units representing approximately 59% of these 

employees were ratified in 1999 with terms expiring in 2002. New 

contracts with collective bargaining units representing approximate

ly 141% of these employees were ratified In 2000 with terms expiring 

in 2003.  

In December 1996, a lawsuit was filed in the Circuit Court of 

Madison County, Illinois, alleging negligence on behalf of 

AmerenCIPS and one of its subcontractors for Injuries arising out 

of an elevator accident which occurred at the AmerenCIPS' Newton 

Power Plant in November 1996. In October 2000, a settlement 

agreement was entered into between the parties. The settlement 

is the subject of a confidentiality agreement; however, AmerenCIPS 

has adequate insurance to cover the settlement and the judgment 

entered in these proceedings. Rs such, the final resolution of this 

lawsuit will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's 

financial position, results of operations or liquidity.  

Regulatory changes enacted and being considered at the federal 

and state levels continue to change the structure of the utility indus

try and utility regulation, as well as encourage increased competi-

tion. Rt this time, the Company is unable to predict the Impact of 

these changes on the Company's future financial condition, results 

of operations or liquidity. See Note 2 - Regulatory Matters for 

further information.  

The Company Is involved in other legal and administrative pro

ceedings before various courts and agencies with respect to mat

ters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which 

Involve substantial amounts. The Company believes that the final 

disposition of these proceedings will not have a material adverse 

effect on its financial position, results of operations or liquidity.  

NOTE 13 - CALLAWAY NUCLEAR PLANT 

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the Department of 

Energy (DOEI is responsible for the permanent storage and disposal 

of spent nuclear fuel. The DOE currently charges one mill per 

nuclear-generated kilowatthour sold for future disposal of spent fuel.  

Electric utility rates charged to customers provide for recovery of 

such costs. The DOE is not expected to have its permanent stor

age facility for spent fuel available until at least 2015. The 

Company has sufficient storage capacity at the Callaway Nuclear 

Plant site until 2020 and has the capability for additional storage 

capacity through the licensed life of the plant. The delayed avail

ability of the DOE's disposal facility is not expected to adversely 

affect the continued operation of the Callaway Nuclear Plant.  

Electric utility rates charged to customers provide for recovery 

of Callaway Nuclear Plant decommissioning costs over the life of the 

plant, based on an assumed 4-0-year life, ending with expiration of 

the plant's operating license in 202L4. The Callaway site is assumed 

to be decommissioned using the DECON (immediate dismantlement) 

method. Decommissioning costs, including decontamination, dis

mantling and site restoration, are estimated to be $554 million in 

current year dollars and are expected to escalate approximately 

14% per year through the end of decommissioning activity in 2033.  

Decommissioning costs are charged to depreciation expense over 

Callaway's service life and amounted to approximately $7 million In 

each of the years 2000, 1999 and 1998. Every three years, the 

MoPSC and ICC require the Company to file updated cost studies for 

decommissioning Callaway, and electric rates may be adjusted at 

such times to reflect changed estimates. The latest studies were 

filed in 1999. Costs collected from customers are deposited In an 

external trust fund to provide for Callaway's decommissioning. Fund 

earnings are expected to average approximately 9% annually through 

the date of decommissioning. If the assumed return on trust assets 

Is not earned, the Company believes it is probable that any such 

earnings deficiency will be recovered In rates. Trust fund earnings, 

net of expenses, appear on the consolidated balance sheet as 

increases in the nuclear decommissioning trust fund and in the 

accumulated provision for nuclear decommissioning.  

The staff of the SEC has questioned certain current accounting 

practices of the electric utility industry, regarding the recognition,
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measurement and classification of decommissioning costs for 

nuclear generating stations in the financial statements of electric 
utilities. In response to these questions, the Financial Accounting 

Standards Board has agreed to review the accounting for removal 
costs, including decommissioning. The Company does not expect 
that changes in the accounting for nuclear decommissioning costs 
will have a material effect on its financial position, results of opera

tions or liquidity.  

NOTE 14 - FAIR VALUE 

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate 
the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is 

practicable to estimate that value: 

Cash and Temporary 
Investments/Short-Term Borrowings 

The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the 

short-term maturity of these instruments.  

Marketable Securities 
The fair value is based on quoted market prices obtained from 

dealers or investment managers.  

Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Fund 
The fair value is estimated based on quoted market prices for 

securities.  

Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries 

The fair value is estimated based on the quoted market prices 

for the same or similar issues.  

Long-Term Debt 
The fair value is estimated based on the quoted market prices 

for same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to the 
Company for debt of comparable maturities.  

Derivative Financial Instruments 
Market prices used to determine fair value are based on man

agement's estimates, which take into consideration factors like 
closing exchange prices, over-the-counter prices, and time value of 

money and volatility factors.  

Carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's 
financial instruments at December 31:

debt and equity securities as available for sale and has recorded all 

such investments at their fair market value at December 31, 2000 and 

1999. In 2000, 1999 and 1998, the proceeds from the sale of invest

ments were $51 million, $83 million and $29 million, respectively.  

Using the specific identification method to determine cost, the gross 

realized gains on those sales were approximately $1 million for 

2000, and $11 million for 1999 and $2 million for 1998. Net realized 

and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the accumulated 

provision for nuclear decommissioning on the consolidated balance 

sheet, which is consistent with the method used by the Company to 

account for the decommissioning costs recovered in rates.  

Costs and fair values of investments in debt and equity securi

ties in the nuclear decommissioning trust fund at December 31 were 

as follows:

2000 In Millions 

Security Type 

Debt securities 

Equity securities 

Cash equivalents 

1999 In Millions 

Security Type 

Debt securities 

Equity securities 

Cash equivalents

Gross Unrealized 
Cost Gain [Loss! Fair Value

$71 $3 

52 61

$ - $ 7L 

- 113
L4 L4 

$127 $5L4 $ - $191 

Gross Unrealized 

Cost Gain (Loss) Fair Value

$567 $ 
LI5 73

$- $517 
- 118

2 - - 2 

$114L $73 $ - $187

The contractual maturities of investments in debt securities 
at December 31, 2000 were as follows:

In Millions 

I year to 5 years 

5 years to 10 years 

Due after 10 years

Cost Fair Value 

$7 $7 

32 31.  

32 33 

$71 $7L4

NOTE 15 - STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS NO. 133 

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
IFRSBI issued SFRS No. 133, "Rccountinq for Derivative

In Millions

Preferred stock 

Long-term debt 

(including current portion) 

The Company has investmi 

that are held in trust funds for 

decommissioning of Callaway 

Nuclear Plant). The Company

Instruments and Hedging Rctivities." SFAS 133 establishes 

accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, 
arnount Value arnount Value including certain derivative instruments embedded in other con

tracts, and for hedging activities and requires recognition of all 
$235 $185 $235 $192 derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet 

measured at fair value. The intended use of the derivatives and 2,789 2,8141 2,509 2,4.8L4 their designation as either a fair value hedge, a cash flow hedge, 

ents in debt and equity securities or a foreign currency hedge will determine when the gains or 

the purpose of funding the nuclear losses on the derivatives are to be reported in earnings and when 

Nuclear Plant (see Note 13 - Callaway they are to be reported as a component of other comprehensive 

has classified these investments in income in stockholders' equity. In June 1999, the FSB issued
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SFRS No. 137, "Rccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 

Rctivities - Deferral of the Effective Date of FRS6 Statement No.  

133," which delayed the effective date of SFRS 133 to all fiscal 

quarters of all fiscal years, beginning after June 15, 2000. In 

June 2000, the FRSB issued SFAS No. 138, "Rccounting for 

Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities - an 

amendment of FRSB Statement No. 133," which amended certain 

accounting and reporting standards of SFRS 133. The Company 

is adopting SFRS 133 in the first quarter of 2001. The Company 

expects the impact of this standard to result in a cumulative 

charge as of January 1, 2001 of $7 million after income taxes to 

the income statement and a cumulative adjustment of $11 million 

to decrease stockholders' equity. However, the Derivatives 

Implementation Group (01G), a committee of the FFSB responsible 

for providing guidance on the implementation of SFRS 133, has not 

reached a conclusion regarding the appropriate accounting treat

ment of certain types of energy contracts under SFRS 133. The 

Company is unable to predict when this issue will ultimately 

be resolved and the impact the resolution will have on the 

Company's future financial position, results of operations or liquid

ity. Implementation of SFRS 133 will likely increase the volatility 

of the Company's earnings in future periods.  

NOTE 16 - SEGMENT INFORMATION 

In 1998, the Company adopted SFRS No. 131, "Disclosures 

about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information." 

Ameren's principal business segment is comprised of the utility 

operating companies that provide electric and gas service in 

portions of Missouri and Illinois. The other reportable segment 

includes the nonutility subsidiaries, as well as the Company's 

60% interest in Electric Energy, Inc.  

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those 

described in Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  

Segment data includes intersegment revenues, as well as a 

charge allocating costs of administrative support services to each 

of the operating companies. These costs are accumulated in a 

separate subsidiary, Ameren Services Company, which provides 

a variety of support services to Ameren and its subsidiaries. The 

Company evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates 

resources to them, based on revenues, operating income and net 

income.  

The table below presents information about the reported 

revenues, net income, and total assets of Rmeren for the years 

ended December 31:

1999 In Millions 

Revenues 

Net income 

Total assets 

1998 In Millions 

Revenues 

Net income 

Total assets

Utility 
Operations 

$3,L455 

384I 

8,825

l/i Reconciling 
Other Items

$2413 

L13S

$ (174)* 

(82)

Total 

$3,524 

385 

9,178

$3,230 $190 $(102)* $3,318 

380 6 - 386 

8,594- 237 16 8,847

* Elimination of intercompany revenues.  

Specified items included in segment profit/loss for the years 

ended December 31:

2000 In Millions

Interest expense 
Depreciation, depletion 

and amortization expense 

Income tax expense

Utility 
Operations

fll 
Other Total

$205 $ 12 $217 

359 13 372 

297 t4 301

1999 In Millions 

Interest expense $163 $ 9 $172 

Depreciation, depletion 

and amortization expense 337 12 3419 

Income tax expense 261 (2) 259 

1998 in Millions 

Interest expense $170 $ 9 $179 

Depreciation, depletion 

and amortization expense 334L 1L 3486 

Income tax expense 263 5 26B 

Specified items related to segment assets as of December 31: 

Utility All 
2000 In Millions Operations Other Total 

Expenditures for additions 

to long-lived assets $872 $ LIS $917 

1999 In Millions 

Expenditures for additions 

to long-lived assets $3142 $179 $521 

1998 In Millions

ill Reconciling 
Other Items Total 

$2914 $(557)* $3,856 

- - L457 

287 (1,350) 9,7114

Expenditures for additions 
to long-lived assets $290 $ 31 $321

* Elimination of Intercompany revenues.

2000 In Millions 

Revenues 

Net income 

Total assets

Utility 
Operations 

$14,119 

4157 

10,777
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Millions of Dollars, 
Except Share and Per Share Rmounts and Ratios 2000 1999 1998 1997 1995 1995 

Results of Operations Year Ended December 31 

Operating revenues $3,856 $3,52k4 $3,318 $3,327 $3,328 $3,236 

Operating expenses 3,216 2,961 2,7147 2,7'4-4 2,752 2,658 

Operating income 6L40 563 571 582 576 578 
Income before extraordinary charge L4-57 385 386 387 372 373 

Extraordinary charge, net of income taxes - - - 52 -

Net income L457 385 386 335 372 373 
Rverage common shares outstanding 137,215,4162 137,215,1462 137,215,462 137,215,462 137,215,462 137,215,.4162 

Assets, Obligations 

and Equity Capital December3l, 

Total assets $9,71I4 $9,178 $8,8L47 $8,828 $8,933 $8,788 

Long-term debt obligations 2,7145 2,-4L8 2,289 2,506 2,335 2,373 

Preferred stock subject to 

mandatory redemption - -I- 1 1 

Preferred stock not subject to 

mandatory redemption 235 235 235 235 298 298 

Common equity 3,197 3,090 3,056 3,019 3,016 2,971 

Financial Indices Year Ended December 31, 

Earnings per share of common stock 

before extraordinary charge $3.33 $2.81 $2.82 $2.82 $2.71 $2.72 

Extraordinary charge, net of income taxes - - - $ (.38) 

Earnings per share of common stock 

(based on average shares outstanding) $3.33 $2.81 $2.82 $2.'P44 $2.71 $2.72 
Dividend payout ratio 76% 90% 90% 99% 88% 86% 
Return on average common stock equity 1-4.60% 12.56% 12.82% 11.1'4% 12.51% 12.76% 

Ratio earnings to fixed charges 

RmerenUE 5.33 5.Eq 4-.99 q.70 L1.68 L4.78 
RmerenCIPS 4.05 2.98 L4.13 3. 6L4 L4.30 L4.141 

Book value per common share $23.30 $22.52 $22.27 $22.00 $21.98 $21.65 

Capitalization Ratios December 31, 

Common equity 51.8% 53.5% 5-4.8% 52.'4% 53.L4% 52.6% 

Preferred stock 3.8 L4.1 '4.2 4. 1 5.3 5.3 
Long-term debt L4L4.4 L4 2.L4 411.0 '-13.5 4.3 L12.1 

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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ELECTRIC OPERATING STATISTICS

Year Ended December 31, 2000 I999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Electric Operating Revenues Millions 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Wholesale 

Other 

Native 

Interchange 

EEl 

Miscellaneous 

Credit to customers 
TOTAL ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES 

Kilowatthour Sales Millions 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Wholesale 
Other 

Native 

Interchange 

EEl 

TOTAL KILOWATTHOUR SALES 

Electric Customers End of Year 

Residential 

Commercial 

Industrial 

Wholesale 

Miscellaneous 

TOTAL ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS 

Residential Customer Data Rverage 
Kilowatthours used 

Rnnual electric bill 

Revenue per kilowatthour 

Gross Instantaneous Peak Demand Megawatts 

RmerenUE 
RmerenEnergy Resources/RmerenCIPS 

Capability at Time of Peak, 

Including Net Purchases and Sales Megawatts 

AmerenUE 

AmerenEnergy Resources/RmerenCIPS 

Generating Capability at Time of Peak Megawatts 

AmerenLIE 

RmerenEnergy Resources/AmerenCIPS 

Coal Burned Millions of Tons 

Price per Ton of Coal Rverage 

Source of Energy Supply 
Fossil 

Nuclear 

Hydro 
Purchased and interchanged, net

$1,142 $1,097 
997 956 

505 505 

151 108 

211 214 

2,819 2,690 
5311 399 

1651 177 

714 60 
165) [38) 

$3,526 $3,288

$1,125 
966 
511 

91 

23 

2,716 

2110 

152 

29 

(L131 
$3,091

$1,06'] 
927 

5oo 

91 
214 

2,606 

22L1 

207 

117 
(20) 

$3,065'

$1,070 
920 

5oo 

91 
28 

2,609 

280 

198 

22 

1L171 
$3,062

$1,073 
906 

1496 

87 

28 

2,590 

230 
201 

20 

(33) 
$3,008

15,683 114,853 15,188 114,325 14,.4118 114,086 

16,65141 15,418 15,555 114,990 114,872 111,54611 

11,911 11,5119 11,582 11,41014 11,191 10,971 

11,230 3,002 2.416 2,323 2,328 2,2q8 

307 303 303 317 305 316 

148.778 115,135 145,0711 113,359 143,111 142,085 

16,693 12,371 8,075 9,402 10,768 8,176 

6,9114 9,270 8,296 11,220 10.5514 10,850 

72,385 66,776 61.11115 63,981 654,4136 65,111 

1,307,237 1,298,008 1,289,5118 1,282,0142 1,275,5311 1,267,976 

190,399 186,598 179,773 178,301 1711,716 171,905 

5,957 6,188 5,926 6.5511 6,660 6,782 

24 20 20 21 20 21 

11,295 L1,293 41,098 14,286 -1.303 14,339 

1,507,912 1,.495,107 1,.179,365 1,1471,2011 1,1461,233 1,4151,023

12,579 11.827 11,986 11,215 11,3514 

$895.20 $859.53 $873.28 $833.34 $8142.82 

7.12C 7.27C 7.29C 7.38C 7.30¢ 

8.706 8,831 8,4129 8.055 8,085 

2,829 2,217 2.163 1,923 1,892

9.359 9"1141 
3,560 2.556

9,027 8,950 
2,4117 2,4991

9,120 

2,519

8,320 8,352 8,282 8,279 8.2t441 
3,41113 3,027 3,0410 3,033 3,033 

25,267 23,638 22,959 21,392 20,062 

$18.9'4 $20.3'] $21.29 $23.5'] $25.25

11,152 
$849.62 

7.62C 

7,965 
1, 9110 

8,71L4 

2.489 

8,1841 

3,018 
17,715 

$26.86

83.2% 85.4% 83.5% 83.8% 79.6% 75.3% 

18.8 17.9 17.7 19.3 19.2 18.3 

1.6 3.1 3.8 2.7 2.8 3.6 

(3.6) (5.A) (5.01 (5.8) [1.6) 1.8 

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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GAS OPERATING STATISTICS 
Year Ended December 31, 2000 

Natural Gas Operating Revenues Millions 

Residential $2014 

Commercial 59 
Industrial 17 
Off system sales 18 
Miscellaneous 16 

TOTAL NATURAL GAS OPERATING REVENUES $3214 

MMBtu Sales Millions 

Residential 25 
Commercial 9 
Industrial 3 
Off system sales L4 

TOTAL MMBTU SALES LII 

Natural Gas Customers End of Year 
Residential 269,477 
Commercial 30,9641 
Industrial 386 

TOTAL NATURAL GAS CUSTOMERS 300,827 

Peak Day Throughput Thousands of MMBtus 
RmerenClPS 226 
RmerenUE 159 

TOTAL PEAK DAY THROUGHPUT 395

1999

$1146 

52 

18 

LI 

8 

$228

1996 

$135 
50 

19 

3 

10 

$217

'997

$150 

55 

22 

13 

10 

$250

1996 

$161 
61 

21 

$5 
$2511

1995 

$137 

51 

18 

11 
$217

21 21 23 27 214 
8 8 9 11 10 
LI 5 6 5 5 

1 1 5 
314 35 113 113 39 

267,086 265,1405 253,588 260,989 257,8L48 
29,2147 30,2145 30,1417 29,911 29,14146 

1436 1407 1412 1402 378 
296,759 296,057 294,14 17 291,302 287,672 

2417 229 281 302 270 

1811 157 181 189 159 
1431 385 5462 1191 1429
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Jimmy L. Davis 
Vice President, Customer Services 
Gas Operations Support 

Jean M. Hannis 
Vice President, Human Resources 

Michael J. Montana 
Vice President, Supply Services

Craig D. Nelson 
Vice President, Corporate Planning 

Gregory L. Nelson 
Vice President and Tax Counsel 

J. Kay Smith 

Vice President, 
Corporate Communications and Public Policy 

David R. Whiteley 
Vice President, 
Energy Delivery Technical Services 

Samuel E. Willis 
Vice President, industrial Relations 

Ronald C. Zdellar 
Vice President, Customer Services 

Division Support 

Ameren Energy 
James F Whitesides 
President 

Baxter R. Gillette 

Vice President, Risk Management 

Clarence J. Hopf, Jr.  

Vice President, Energy Trading 

Br/an Rettenmaler 
Controller 

AmerenEnergy Resources 

Gary L. Rainwater 
President 

R. Rlan Kelley 

Senior Vice President, 
RmerenEnergy Generating 

Michael G. Mueller 
Vice President, 
RmerenEnergy Fuels and Services 

Robert L. Powers 
Vice President, RmerenEnergy Generating 

Rndrew M. Serri 

Vice President, RmerenEnergy Marketing 

Jerry L. Simpson 
Vice President, RmerenEnergy Generating 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Ameren Corporation 

William E. Comel/us' 
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Union Electric Company 

Clifford L. Greenwalt' 
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer 

CIPSCO Incorporated 

Thomas R. Hays ' 
Retired Deputy Chairman 

The May Department Stores Company

Richard R. Liddy 2 

Chairman, GenRmerica Financial Corporation, 

a provider of insurance products and services 

Gordon R. Lohman' 

Retired Chairman, 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
RMSTEO Industries Incorporated 

Richard R. Lumpk/n 

Chairman, 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Illinois Consolidated Telephone Company, 
a diversified telecommunications company 

John Peters MacCarthy' 

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Boatmen's Trust Company 

Hanne M. Merriman 
Principal - Hanne Merriman Rssociates, 
a retail business consulting firm 

Paul L. Miller Jr. 2 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

P.L. Miller and Rssociates, 
a management consulting firm 

Charles W. Mueller' 

Chairman of the Board, 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
Rmeren Corporation 

Robert H. Quenon 
Retired Chairman of the Board 
Peabody Holding Company, Inc.  

Harvey Saligman 2 

Retired Managing Partner 
Cynwyd Investments 

Janet McRfee WeakJey' 2 

Chairman - Janet McRfee, Inc., 
a residential real estate company 

James W, Wogsland 2 

Retired Vice Chairman - Caterpillar, Inc.  
Member of Executive Committee 

2Member of Auditing Committee 

ADVISER TO THE BOARD 
Thomas H. Jacobsen 
Chairman - Firstar Corporation, 
a bank holding company
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INVESTOR INFORMATION 
COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION 

Rmerens common stock is listed on the New York Stock 
Exchange (ticker symbol: REE). REE began trading on January 2, 

1998, following the merger of Union Electric Company and 

CIPSCO Incorporated on December 31,1997.  
Common stockholders of record totaled 107,587 for Rmeren at 

December 31, 2000. The following includes the price ranges and 

dividends paid per common share for REE during 2000 and 1999.

AEE 2000 
Quarter Ended 

March 31 
June 30 
September 30 
December 31 

AEE 1999 
Quarter Ended 

March 31 

June 30 
September 30 
December 31

High Low Close 

$311,4 $279& $3015/o, 
38 305/, 33 3/, 

q43 l5 37 & 141 /1 
(46'5/,, 37/ L4 45 S/1

High 
$L42 '5&l 
$1 45/,, 

L40 3/, 
397/0

Low 

$3653 

325 '/ 
367/, 
32

Close 

$363/,, 

3713/ 

323/X

Dividends Paid 

63 V12 

63Y, 

63Y, 
63Y, 

Dividends Paid 

63Y2( 

63'/2 
63 Y2 

63 Y

ANNUAL MEETING 
The annual meeting of Rmeren, Union Electric Company and 

Central Illinois Public Service Company stockholders will convene 

at 9 a.m., Tuesday, Rpril 214, 2001, at Powell Symphony Hall, 

718 North Grand Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri.  

DRPLUS 

Through ORPIus R- meren's dividend reinvestment and 

stock purchase plan - any person of legal age or entity, whether 
or not an Rmeren stockholder, is eligible to participate in DRPlus.  

Participants can: 

"* make cash investments by check or automatic direct debit 

to their bank accounts to purchase Rmeren common stock, 

totaling up to $120,000 annually.  

"* reinvest their dividends in Rmeren common stock 

or receive Rmeren dividends in cash.  

"* place Rmeren common stock certificates in safekeeping 

and receive regular account statements.  

If you have not yet exchanged your Union Electric Company or 

CIPSCO Incorporated common stock certificates for Rmeren stock 

certificates, please contact the Investor Services Department.  
This is not an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any 

securities.

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS 
Rll registered Rmeren common and Union Electric Company 

and Central Illinois Public Service Company preferred stockhold

ers can have their cash dividends automatically credited to 
their bank accounts. This service gives stockholders immediate 

access to their dividend on the dividend payment date and 

eliminates the possibility of lost or stolen dividend checks.  

AMEREN'S WEB SITE 

To obtain REE's daily stock price, recent financial statistics 

and other information about the Company, visit Rmeren's home 

page on the Internet. Rmeren's web site address is: 

http://www.ameren.com 

INVESTOR SERVICES 

The Company's Investor Services representatives are available 

to help you each business day from 7:30 a.m. to 41:30 p.m.  

(central standard time). Please write or call: 

Rmeren Services Company 

Investor Services 

P.O. Box 66887 

St. Louis, MO 63166-6887 

St. Louis area 314I-5514-3502 

Toll-free 1-800-255-2237 

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR 

AND PAYING AGENT 

The Transfer Rgent, Registrar and Paying Rgent for Rmeren 

Corporation Common Stock and Union Electric Company and 

Central Illinois Public Service Company Preferred Stock is Rmeren 

Services Company.  

OFFICE 

One Rmeren Plaza 

1901 Chouteau Rvenue 

St. Louis, MO 63103 

31]-621-3222
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